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NOTICE

thNotice is hereby given that the 38  ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (AGM) of the members of SARTHAK GLOBAL 
thLIMITED will be held on Monday, the 25  September, 2023 at 12:30 P.M. IST through Video Conferencing (“VC”) / Other 

Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”) to transact the following businesses.

The proceedings of the AGM shall be deemed to be conducted at the Registered Office of the Company at 609, Floor-6, 
West Wing, Tulsiani Chambers, Nariman Point-Mumbai-400021 which shall be the deemed venue of the AGM.

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. Adoption of Audited Standalone Financial Statements.

To receive, consider and adopt:
stThe Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company consisting of the Balance Sheet as at 31  March, 

2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss, Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 
on that date and the Explanatory Notes annexed to, and forming part of, any of the said documents together with the 
reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors report thereon; 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolutions as an Ordinary 
Resolutions:

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Standalone financial statements of the Company consisting of the Balance Sheet as 
stat 31  March, 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss, Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity for 

the year ended on that date and the Explanatory Notes annexed to, and forming part of, any of the said documents 
together with the reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors report, as circulated to the Members, be and are 
hereby considered and adopted.”

2. Appointment of a Director Retiring by Rotation .

To re-appoint a Director in place of Mrs. Swati Sudesh Oturkar (DIN: 07024890), who retires by rotation and being 
eligible, has offered herself for reappointment.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT Mrs. Swati Sudesh Oturkar (DIN: 07024890), who retires by rotation from the Board of Directors 
pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and as per the Company’s Articles of 
Association be and is hereby re-appointed as the Director of the Company.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

3. To approve the Appointment of Mr. Naresh Vyas (DIN: 08247948) as an Independent Director of the Company 
for a first term of five consecutive years. 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special 
Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152, 160 and any other applicable provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the Rules made there under and applicable provisions of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, (“the LODR Regulations”) (including any statutory 
modification(s) or reenactment thereof for the time being in force) read with Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013, 
the provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company and based on the recommendations of the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company, approval of the Members be and is hereby 
accorded for appointment of Mr. Naresh Vyas (DIN: 08247948) who was appointed as an Additional Director (in the 

stcapacity of an Independent Director) of the Company by the Board of Directors with effect from 1  September, 2023, 
and who has submitted a declaration that he meets the criteria of independence under Section 149(6) of the Act and 
Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations and is eligible for appointment under the provisions of the Act, the 
Rules made thereunder and the Listing Regulations, and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in 
writing under Section 160(1) of the Act proposing his candidature for the office of an Independent Director, as an 

stIndependent Director, not liable to retire by rotation, to hold office for a term of five consecutive years i.e., from 1  
stSeptember, 2023 upto 31  August, 2028.
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board or any duly constituted Committee of the Board, be and is hereby authorised 
to do all acts, deeds, matters and things as may be deemed necessary and/or expedient in connection therewith or 
incidental thereto, to give effect to the foregoing resolution.”

By order of the Board of Directors

Place: Indore Ankit Joshi
thDated: 29  August, 2023   Company Secretary

(ACS-39299)

SARTHAK GLOBAL LIMITED
CI N: L 99999MH1985PLC 136835
Regd. Office: 609, Floor-6, West Wing, Tulsiani Chambers,
Nariman Point, Mumbai (MH), 400021, 
Contact No.: 022-22824851, Fax: 022-22042865
Email Id: sgl@sarthakglobal.com, Website: www.sarthakglobal.com
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NOTES:

1. In compliance with the Circular No. 10/2022 dated 28  December, 2022 read with Circular Nos. 14/2020 dated 8  
th th thApril, 2020, 17/2020 dated 13  April, 2020, 20/2020 dated 5  May, 2020, 02/2021 dated 13  January, 2021, 21/2021 

thdated 14  December, 2021 and all other relevant Circulars (“MCA Circulars”) issued by the Ministry of Corporate 
thAffairs (“MCA”) and Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/4 dated 5  January, 2023 (“SEBI Circular”) 

issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) and relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”) and Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) will be held without the 
physical presence of Shareholders at a common venue.

In this Annual Report, the connotation of “Members” and “Shareholders” is the same.

2. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, which sets out details relating to 
Special Business at the meeting, forms part of this Notice. 

3. Members attending the AGM through VC or OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under 
Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

4. Since this AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA Circulars through VC / OAVM, physical attendance of Members 
has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the Members will not be available for 
the AGM and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice.

However, in pursuance of Section 113 of the Act and Rules framed thereunder, the corporate members (i.e. any Body 
Corporate) are entitled to appoint authorized representatives for the purpose of voting through remote e-Voting or for 
the participation and e-Voting during the AGM, through VC or OAVM. Institutional Shareholders (i.e., other than 
individuals, HUF, NRI, etc.) are required to send scanned copy (PDF / JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution / 
Power of Attorney / appropriate Authorization Letter together with attested specimen signature(s) of the duly 
authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized  to vote,  to the Scrutinizer through e-mail at amitjaincs@yahoo.com  
with a copy marked to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

th th5. Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 14  September, 2023 to 25  
thSeptember, 2023 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of 38  Annual General Meeting.

6. Details of Directors retiring by rotation / seeking appointment / re-appointment at the ensuing Meeting are provided in 
the “Annexure” to the Notice pursuant to the provisions  of (i) the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and (ii) Secretarial Standard on General Meetings 
(“SS-2”), issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. The Directors have furnished the requisite 
declarations for their appointment / re-appointment.

thWe draw your attention to SEBI Circular dated 16  March, 2023 bearing reference no. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/ MIRSD-
PoD-1/P/CIR/2023/37, issued in supersession of earlier circulars, whereby SEBI has mandated the following:

th th



a. Furnishing of PAN, email address and/or mobile number, bank account details and nomination by holders of 
physical securities; 

b. any service request and complaint shall be entertained only upon registration of the PAN, Bank details and the 
nomination; and

stc. ensuring that your PAN is linked to Aadhaar by 31  March, 2023 or any other date as may be specified by the 
thCentral Board of Direct Taxes to avoid freezing of your folio. Lastly CBDT extended the date till 30  June, 2023.

7. Freezing of Folios without PAN, KYC details and Nomination:
sta. Folios wherein any one of the said document / details are not available on or after 1  October, 2023, shall be frozen 

stand you will not be eligible to lodge grievance or avail service request from the RTA. Further effective 1  April, 2024 
you will not be eligible for receiving dividend in physical mode.

stb. After 31  December, 2025, the frozen folios shall be referred by RTA/Company to the administering authority 
under the Benami Transactions (Prohibitions) Act, 1988 and/or Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002.

You are requested to forward the duly filled in Form ISR-1, Form ISR-2 and Form SH-13/Form ISR-3 along with the related 
proofs as mentioned in the respective forms as the earliest. 

8. Issuance of Securities in dematerialized form in case of Investor Service Requests
thWe would further like to draw your attention to SEBI Notification dated 24  January, 2022 read with SEBI Circular 

t hSEBI /HO/MIRSD/  MIRSD_RTAMB/P/  CIR/2022/8  da ted  25  January,  2022 and SEBI /  
thHO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2022/65 dated 18  May, 2022. Accordingly, while processing service requests in 

relation to; 

a. Issue of duplicate securities certificate; 
b. Claim from Unclaimed Suspense Account and Suspense Escrow Demat Account; 
c. Replacement / Renewal / Exchange of securities certificate; 
d. Endorsement; 
e. Sub-division / Splitting of securities certificate; 
f. Consolidation of securities certificates/folios; 
g. Transmission;
h. Transposition and 
i. Transmission.

The Company shall issue securities only in dematerialised form. For processing any of the aforesaid service requests 
the securities holder/claimant shall submit duly filled up Form ISR-4/ISR-5.

9. We hereby request to holders of physical securities to furnish the documents/details, as per the table below for 
respective service request, to the Registrars & Transfer Agents i.e., Sarthak Global Limited:

Sr. No. Particulars Please furnish details in

1. PAN Form No.: ISR-1

2. Address with PIN Code
st3. Email address (Optional w.e.f. 1  April, 2023)

4. Mobile Number

5. Bank Account Details (Bank Name and Branch, Bank Account Number, IFS Code)

6. Demat Account Number

7. Specimen Signature Form No. : ISR-2

8. Nominee details Form No. : SH-13

9. Declaration to opt out nomination Form No. : ISR-3

10. Cancellation or Variation of Nomination Form No. : SH-14

11. Request for issue of Securities in dematerialized form in case of below:
i. Issue of duplicate securities certificate
ii. Claim from Unclaimed Suspense Account & Suspense Escrow Demat Account
iii. Replacement/Renewal / Exchange of securities certificate
iv. Endorsement Form No.: ISR-4
v. Sub-division / Splitting of securities certificate
vi. Consolidation of securities certificates/folios
vii. Transposition
viii. Change in the name of the holder

12. Form for Request of Transmission Form No.: ISR-5
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A member needs to submit Form ISR-1 for updating PAN and other KYC details to the RTA of the Company. Member may 
submit Form SH-13 to file Nomination. However, in case a Member do not wish to file nomination ‘Declaration to Opt-out’ 
in Form ISR-3 shall be submitted.

All the aforesaid forms can be downloaded from the Company’s website http://www.sarthakglobal.com/formats-for-
kyc (under ‘Investors’ section). Members are requested to submit the said form to their DP in case the shares are held in 
electronic form and to the RTA in case the shares are held in physical form.

10. Mode of submission of form(s) and documents

a. Submitting Hard copy through Post/Courier etc.

Members can forward the hard copies of duly filled-in and signed form(s) along with self-attested and dated copies of 
relevant documentary proofs as mentioned in the respective forms, to the following address:

Registrar & Share Transfer Agent
Sarthak Global Limited

Administrative/Corporate Office: 
170/10, Film Colony, R.N.T. Marg, Indore (M.P.) – 452001, India
Contact No.: 0731-4279626
Email Id: investors@sarthakglobal.com 

b. Through Electronic Mode with e-sign

In case members have registered their email address, they may send the scan soft copies of the form(s) along with 
the relevant documents, duly e-signed, from their registered email address to sgl@sarthakglobal.com. 

c. Submitting Hard copy at the office of the RTA

The form(s) along-with copies of necessary documents can be submitted by the securities holder (s) / claimant (s) in 
person at RTA’s office. For this, the securities holder/claimant should carry Original Documents against which copies 
thereof shall be verified by the authorised person of the RTA and copy(ies) of such documents with IPV (In Person 
Verification) stamping with date and initials shall be retained for processing.

11. Mandatory Self-attestation of the documents

Please note that, each page of the documents that are submitted in hard copy must be self-attested by the holder (s). 
In case the documents are submitted in electronic mode then the same should be furnished with e-sign of scan 
copies of the documents unless otherwise prescribed in the Companies Act, 2013 or the Rules issued thereunder or 
in SEBI Regulations or Circulars issued thereunder.

12. Members are requested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining to their name, postal address, email address, 
telephone/mobile numbers, PAN, registering of nomination and power of attorney, Bank Mandate details such as 
name of the bank and branch details, bank account number, MICR code, IFSC code, etc., to their DP in case the 
shares are held in electronic form, and to the RTA in case the shares are held in physical form.

13. In terms of the provisions of Section 72 of the Act, the facility for making nomination is available for the Shareholders 
in respect of the shares held by them. Shareholders who have not yet registered their nomination are requested to 
register the same by submitting Form No. SH-13. Shareholders holding shares in dematerialized form are requested 
to submit the said details to their Depository Participant(s) and the Shareholders holding shares in physical form, are 
requested to submit the said details to the RTA.

14. In case of Joint-holders, the Member whose name appears as the first holder in the order of names as per the 
Register of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote during the AGM.

15. Members desirous of obtaining any information concerning the accounts and operations of the Company are 
requested to address their questions in writing to the Company at least 10 (Ten) days before the date of the Meeting 
from their registered e-mail address, mentioning their name, DPID and Client ID number/folio number and mobile 
number at the Company’s investor desk at sgl@sarthakglobal.com. The same will be replied by the Company 
suitably.

16. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained under Section 170 of the 
Act, the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which the directors are interested, maintained under Section 189 of 
the Act, and the relevant documents referred to in the Notice will be available electronically for inspection by the 
members during the AGM.

17. All documents referred to in the Notice will also be available electronically for inspection without any fee by the 
members from the date of circulation of this Notice up to the date of AGM. Members seeking to inspect such  
documents can send an email to sgl@sarthakglobal.com.

th 18. In compliance with the MCA Circulars read with Circular No. SEBI/ HO/CFD/PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/4 dated 05 January, 
2023 and other earlier circulars issued in this regard by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI 

thCirculars”), the Notice of the 38  AGM along with the Annual Report of the Company for the financial year ended 
March 31, 2023, is being sent only through e-mail, to those Members whose e-mail addresses are registered with the 
Company or the Depository Participant(s). The Notice and the Annual Report for the financial year ended March 31, 
2023 shall be available on the website of the Company viz. www.sarthakglobal.com and of the Stock Exchange 
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where Equity Shares of the Company are listed, and on the website of the CDSL i.e. www.evotingindia.com.  

Pursuant to Sections 101 and 136 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 18(1) of the Companies (Management 
thand Administration) Rules, 2014 read with the MCA Circulars, the Notice calling the 38  AGM along-with the Annual 

Report which interalia comprises the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial 
stYear ended 31  March, 2023 and Report of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon (“the Annual Report”) is being 

sent only by email to those Members whose e-mail addresses are registered with the Company/ Depository(ies).

19. Since the AGM will be held through VC or OAVM, no Route Map is being provided with the Notice.

20. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of the 
commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at the 
AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available to at least 1000 members on first come first served basis. This  will  
not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, 
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without 
restriction on account of first come first served basis.

21. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) has made it mandatory for all companies to use the bank 
account details furnished by the Depositories for any payment (including dividend) through Electronic Clearing 
Service (“ECS”) to investors. In the absence of ECS facility, companies shall mandatorily print the bank account 
details of the investors on such payment instruments. Members are encouraged to avail ECS facility and requested 
to update bank account details in the prescribed form to their respective Depository Participant(s) and/or the 
Company’s Share Transfer Agents.

As directed by SEBI, the Members holding shares in physical form are requested to submit duly filled in form ISR-1 
inter-alia with the original cancelled cheque in the manner as provided in Note No. 10 herein above to RTA to update 
their KYC details.

22. Voting through electronic means (E-Voting) and E-Voting during the AGM

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) Regulation 44 of the Listing Regulations read with 

thSEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/ CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09  December, 2020, Members are provided with the 
facility to cast their vote electronically on all resolutions set forth in this Notice, through remote e-voting during the 
remote e-voting period. It is hereby clarified that a Member may vote either through availing the remote-e voting 
facility or using the facility of e-voting during the AGM at his/her/its discretion, as per the instructions provided herein 
below. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with Central Depository Services (India) 
Limited (CDSL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the authorized e-Voting agency. The facility of 
casting votes by a member using remote e-voting as well as the e-voting system on the date of the AGM will be 
provided by CDSL.

(I) THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS FOR E-VOTING AND JOINING VIRTUAL MEETINGS ARE AS 
UNDER:

Step-1: Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-voting system in case of individual shareholders holding shares 
in demat mode.

Step-2: Access through CDSL e-voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in physical mode and non-
individual shareholders in demat mode.

nd th
i. The voting period begins on Friday, 22  September, 2023 at 9.00 a.m.  and ends on Sunday 25  September 

2023, at 5.00 p.m. During this period shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in 
thDematerialized form, as on 18  September, 2023 i.e. cut-off date (record date), may cast their vote 

electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.

ii. Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the meeting 
venue.

iii. Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under Regulation 44 of 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, 
listed entities are required to provide remote e-voting facility to its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders’ 
resolutions. However, it has been observed that the participation by the public non-institutional 
shareholders/retail shareholders is at a negligible level. 

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to listed entities in India. 
This necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user IDs and passwords by the 
shareholders. 



Type of Login Method
Shareholders

1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their existing user id 
and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any further 
au then t i ca t ion .  The  URL fo r  use rs  to  l og in  to  Eas i  /  Eas ies t  a re  
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or visit www.cdslindia.com and clicks on 
Login icon and select New System Myeasi.

2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option for eligible 
companies where the e-voting is in progress as per the information provided by company. On 
clicking the e-voting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service 
provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & 
voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links provided to access the system of all 
e-Voting Service Providers i.e. CDSL/NSDL/KARVY/LINKINTIME, so that the user can visit 
the e-Voting service providers’ website directly.

3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at 
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration

4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat Account Number 
and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com home page or click on 
https://evoting.cdslindia.com/Evoting/EvotingLogin. The system will authenticate the 
user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After 
successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-Voting option where the e-Voting is in 
progress and also able to directly access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers.

1) If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-Services website of 
NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com either on 
a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on 
the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section. A new 
screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID and Password. After successful 
authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-
Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting 
service provider name and you will be re-directed to e-Voting service provider website for 
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during 
the meeting.

2) If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for IDeAS “Portal or click   at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp.

3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the 
home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. 
your sixteen digit demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification 
Code as shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL 
Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting 
service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for 
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during 
the meeting.
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In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has been decided to 
enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login credential, through their demat 
accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants. Demat account holders would be able to cast 
their vote without having to register again with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless authentication but 
also enhancing ease and convenience of participating in e-voting process.

Step-1: Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-voting system in case of individual shareholders holding 
shares in demat mode.

iv. In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility 
provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote 
through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are 
advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

Pursuant to above said SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Individual 
shareholders holding securities in Demat mode CDSL/NSDL is given below:

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding securities 
in Demat mode 
with CDSL 
Depository

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding securities 
in demat mode 
with NSDL 
Depository
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Type of Login Method
Shareholders

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your Depository 
Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility.  After Successful login, you will be 
able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to 
NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting 
feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected 
to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or 
joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Individual 
Shareholders 
(holding securities 
in demat mode) 
login through their 
Depository 
Participants

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and 
Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to 
login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL

Login type Helpdesk details

Securities held with CDSL Please contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or 
contact at 022- 23058738 or 022-23058542-43

Securities held with NSDL Please contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or
call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30

Step-2: Access through CDSL e-voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in physical mode and non-
individual shareholders in demat mode.

v. Login method for e-voting and joining virtual meetings for Physical Shareholders and Shareholders other than 
individual holding in Demat form.
1. The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.
2. Click on “Shareholders” module.
3. Now Enter your User ID :

a) For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,
b) For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,
c) Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company.

4. Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

5. If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted earlier in voting 
of any Company, then your existing password is to be used.

6. If you are a first time user, follow the steps given below:

For Physical shareholders andother than individual shareholders holding shares in Demat

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable for both 
Demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders).

● Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company/ Depository Participant are 
requested to use the sequence number sent by Company/RTA and send an email to the Company 
at sgl@sarthakglobal.com to obtain a sequence number for such login, if not available.

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in your Demat 
account or in the company records in order to login.

● If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company, please enter the member id / 
folio number in the Dividend Bank details field.

Dividend Bank 
Details 
OR
Date of Birth
(DOB)



vi. After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

vii. Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. However, 
members holding shares in Demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required to 
mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note  that this password    is to be also used 
by the Demat  holders for voting for resolutions of any other Company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that 
Company opts for e- voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any 
other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

viii. For Shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions 
contained in this Notice.

ix. Click on the EVSN for “SARTHAK GLOBAL LIMITED” on which you choose to vote.

x. On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option “YES/NO” for 
voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired.  The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option 
NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

xi. Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

xii. After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be displayed. If 
you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify 
your vote.

xiii. Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

xiv. You can also take out print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting page.

xv. If a Demat account holder has forgotten the login password then enter the User ID and the image verification code and 
click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.

xvi. There is also an optional provision to upload BR/POS, if any uploaded, which will be made available to scrutinizer for 
verification.

xvii.  Additional Facility for Non-Individual Shareholders & Custodians – For Remote Voting only - 
• Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. Other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to log on to 

www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the “Corporate” module.
• A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to 

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.
• After     receiving  the  login  details a  compliance  user  should  be  created  using the admin login and password. 

The Compliance user would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.
• The   list   of   accounts   linked   in   the   login   will be mapped automatically & can be delink in case of any wrong 

mapping.
• It is mandatory that a scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued 

in favor of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the 
same.

• Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. 
together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory who are authorized to vote, to the 
Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address viz; sgl@sarthakglobal.com, if they have voted from 
individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

(II) PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH THE 
COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES:

a. For Physical shareholders- Please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy 
of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self  attested 
scanned copy  of Aadhar  Card) by email to Company’s email id at sgl@sarthakglobal.com respectively.

b. For Demat shareholders – Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository Participant 
(DP).

c. For Individual Demat Shareholders- Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository 
Participants (DP) which is mandatory while e-voting & joining virtual meetings through Depository.

(III) INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM & E-VOTING 
DURING MEETING ARE AS UNDER:

i. The procedure for attending meeting & e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned 
above for e-voting.

ii. The link for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be available where the EVSN of Company will be displayed after 
successful login as per the instructions mentioned above for e-voting.

iii. Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the meeting. However, they will 
not be eligible to vote at the AGM.

iv. Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / IPads for better experience.

v. Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance 
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 during the meeting.

vi. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via Mobile 
Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended 
to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

vii. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may register themselves as a 
speaker by sending their request in advance atleast 7 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat account 
number/folio number, email id, mobile number at company email id. The shareholders who do not wish to speak 
during the AGM but have queries may send their queries in advance 7 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, 
demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at company email id. These queries will be replied to by 
the company suitably by email.

viii.Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their views/ask 
questions during the meeting.

ix. Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their vote on the 
Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-
Voting system available during the AGM.

x. If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the AGM and if the same shareholders 
have not participated in the meeting through VC/OAVM facility, then the votes cast by such shareholders shall be 
considered invalid as the facility of e-voting during the meeting is available only to the shareholders attending the 
meeting

xi. If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting System, you can write 
an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 1800 22 55 33 

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to: - 

Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, 
Sr. Manager, (CDSL) Central Depository Services (India) Limited,

thA Wing, 25  Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds,
 N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai – 400013

or send an email to  helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call toll free no. 1800 22 55 33.

23. GENERAL INFORMATION FOR SHAREHOLDERS:

I. Shareholders can update their mobile numbers and e-mail IDs (which may be used for sending future 
communication(s) by writing to sgl@sarthakglobal.com.

ii. Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and becomes a member of the Company after dispatch of the 
thNotice and holding shares as of the cut-off date i.e. 18  September, 2023 may obtain the login ID and password by 

sending an email to sgl@sarthakglobal.com or helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com by mentioning their Folio No. 
/DP ID and Client ID.

iii. Mr. Amit Jain, Proprietor of M/s. Amit Preeti & Associates, Practicing Company Secretary (FCS 7859; CP No. 24303) 
has been appointed as Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner. The 
Scrutinizer’s decisions on the validity of the vote shall be final.

iv. The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of e-voting at the AGM, first download the votes cast at the 
AGM and thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-Voting and shall make a consolidated scrutinizer’s 
report of the total votes cast in favour or against, invalid votes, if any, and whether the resolutions have been carried or 
not, and such report shall then be sent to the Chairman or a person authorized by him, within 48 (forty eight) hours 
from the conclusion of the AGM, who shall then countersign the same.

v. Based on the Scrutinizer’s Report, the Company will submit within 2 (two) working days of the conclusion of the AGM 
to the Stock Exchange, details of the voting results as required under Regulation 44(3) of the SEBI Listing 
Regulations.

vi. The Results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the Company’s website 
www.sarthakglobal.com immediately after the declaration of the result by the Chairperson or a person authorized 
by him in writing and communicated to the Stock Exchange.

vii. The Resolutions shall be deemed to be passed at the Registered Office of the Company on the date of the AGM, 
subject to receipt of the requisite number of votes in favour of the Resolutions.

       By order of the Board of Directors
Place: Indore

th
Dated: 29  August, 2023 Ankit Joshi
SARTHAK GLOBAL LIMITED   Company Secretary
CI N: L 99999MH1985PLC 136835 (ACS-39299)
Regd. Office: 609, Floor-6, West Wing, Tulsiani Chambers,
Nariman Point, Mumbai (MH), 400021, 
Contact No.: 022-22824851, Fax: 022-22042865
Email Id: sgl@sarthakglobal.com, Website : www.sarthakglobal.com
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STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ("THE ACT"), AND RULES MADE 
THEREUNDER IN RESPECT OF THE SPECIAL BUSINESS SET OUT IN THE NOTICE, SECRETARIAL STANDARD 
ON GENERAL MEETINGS (SS-2), WHEREVER APPLICABLE, AND SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND 
DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015, AS AND WHEREVER APPLICABLE.

Item No. 3

Pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board, on 14  August, 2023 appointed Mr. Naresh Vyas (DIN: 
08247948) as an Additional Director in the capacity of Independent Director of the Company for a term of 5 (five) years 

st stwith effect from 01  September, 2023 to 31  August, 2028 (both days inclusive) subject to the approval of the shareholders 
through a special resolution.

The Company has received the following from him:

(I) Consent in writing to act as Director in Form DIR-2 pursuant to Rule 8 of the Companies (Appointment & Qualification 
of Directors) Rules, 2014 (“the Appointment Rules”);

(ii) Intimation in Form DIR-8 in terms of the Appointment Rules to the effect that he is not disqualified under sub-section 
(2) of Section 164 of the Act;

(iii) A declaration to the effect that he meets the criteria of independence as provided in sub-section (6) of Section 149 of 
the Act and under the LODR Regulations;

(iv) Declaration pursuant to BSE Circular No. LIST/COMP/14/2018-19 dated June 20, 2018, and NSE Circular No. NSE/ 
CML/2018/24 dated June 20, 2018, that he has not been debarred from holding office of a director by virtue of any 
order passed by SEBI or any other such authority;

(v) Confirmation that he is not aware of any circumstance or situation which exists or may be reasonably anticipated that 
could impair or impact his ability to discharge his duties as an Independent Director of the Company;

(vi) A declaration that he is in compliance with Rules 6(1) and 6(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of 
Directors) Rules, 2014, with respect to her registration with the data bank of independent directors maintained by the 
Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs.

The Company has received a notice in writing by a member proposing his candidature under Section 160 of the Act.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) had previously finalized the desired attributes for the selection of 
the independent director(s). Based on those attributes, the NRC recommended the candidature of Mr. Naresh Vyas In the 
opinion of the Board, Mr. Naresh Vyas fulfils the conditions for independence specified in the Act, the Rules made 
thereunder, the LODR Regulations and such other laws / regulations for the time being in force, to the extent applicable to 
the Company. The Board noted that Mr. Naresh Vyas, skills, background and experience are aligned to the role and 
capabilities identified by the NRC and that he is eligible for appointment as an Independent Director.

The Board was satisfied that the appointment of Mr. Naresh Vyas is justified due to the following reasons:

• He has experience of General Corporate Management.

• He has extensive experience in Marketing Strategies and Customer Relations.

A copy of the draft letter for the appointment of Mr. Naresh Vyas as an Independent Director setting out the terms and 
conditions is available for electronic inspection by the members during normal business hours on working days up to the 
date of AGM.

The resolution seeks the approval of members for the appointment of Mr. Naresh Vyas, as an Independent Director of the 
st stCompany for a term of 5 (five) years effective 01  September, 2023 to 31  August, 2028 (both days inclusive) pursuant to 

Sections 149, 152 and other applicable provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof) and he shall not be liable to retire by rotation.

Pursuant to the provisions of (i) the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and (ii) Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (“SS-2”), issued by the Institute of 
Company Secretaries of India, Details of Mr. Naresh Vyas are provided and form a part of the Notice.

In compliance with Section 149 read with Schedule IV to the Act and Regulation 25 of the LODR Regulations, the approval 
of the Members is sought for the appointment of Mr. Naresh Vyas as an Independent Director of the Company, as a special 
resolution.

th
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No director, KMP or their relatives except Mr. Naresh Vyas, to whom the resolution relates, is interested in or concerned, 
financially or otherwise, in passing the proposed resolution set out in Item no. 3.

The Board recommends the special resolution as set out in Item no. 3 of this notice for the approval of members.

By order of the Board of Directors

Place: Indore Ankit Joshi
thDated: 29  August, 2023   Company Secretary

SARTHAK GLOBAL LIMITED (ACS-39299)

CI N: L 99999MH1985PLC 136835
Regd. Office: 609, Floor-6, West Wing, Tulsiani Chambers,
Nariman Point, Mumbai (MH), 400021, 
Contact No.: 022-22824851, Fax: 022-22042865
Email Id: sgl@sarthakglobal.com, Website : www.sarthakglobal.com



Name of Director MRS. SWATI SUDESH OTURKAR 
(DIN: 07024890) (DIN: 08247948)

Date of Birth 27/07/1969 19/07/1966

Age 54 Years 57 Years

Date of first Appointment 25.11.2014 w.e.f. 01.09.2023

Expertise / Experience in specific She is having vast experience in the field of He is having vast experience
functional areas  Investors relations. in the field of Corporate

General Management and
Marketing Strategies and
Customer Relations.

Qualification Graduate Graduate

Terms and Conditions of As per the resolution passed by the As provided in the resolution
Appointment/ Reappointment shareholders at the Annual General at Item No. 3 of the Notice of

rdMeeting held on 23  September, 2015. this Annual General Meeting.

Remuneration last drawn Rs. 8,000/- (Sitting Fees during the Not Applicable
FY 2022-2023)

Remuneration proposed to be paid As per existing terms and conditions As provided in the resolution
at Item No. 3 of the Notice of
this Annual General Meeting

No. & % of Equity Shares held in Nil Nil
the Company (as on 31.03.2023)

Directorship in other Companies Nil 1. NEHA SECURITIES
(as on 31.03.2023)  PRIVATE LIMITED.

2. GAGANDEEP EXPORTS
PRIVATE LIMITED.
3. NIBODH OIL AND
TRADES PRIVATE LIMITED.

Number of Meetings of the Board 3 Meetings out of 4 Meetings Not Applicable
attended during the year

Chairman/Member of the Nil Nil
Committees of the Board Directors
of other Companies 

Chairman/Member of the Member of Nomination and Remuneration Nil
Committees of the Board of Committee and Risk Management
Directors of the Company Committee.

Relationship   between Not related to any director of the Company Not related to any director of
directors inter-se  the Company

MR. NARESH VYAS
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS SEEKING REAPPOINTMENT/ APPOINTMENT AT THE ENSUING 
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING PURSUANT TO REGULATION 36(3) OF SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATION AND 
DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATION, 2015 AND SECRETARIAL STANDARDS ON GENERAL 
MEETING:

By order of the Board of Directors

Place: Indore Ankit Joshi
thDated: 29  August, 2023   Company Secretary

SARTHAK GLOBAL LIMITED (ACS-39299)

CI N: L 99999MH1985PLC 136835
Regd. Office: 609, Floor-6, West Wing, Tulsiani Chambers,
Nariman Point, Mumbai (MH), 400021, 
Contact No.: 022-22824851, Fax: 022-22042865
Email Id: sgl@sarthakglobal.com, Website : www.sarthakglobal.com
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BOARD’S REPORT

Dear Shareholders 

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 38  Annual Report of your Company together with Audited Standalone 
Financial Statements and the Auditors’ Report of your Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND STATE OF AFFAIRS

The financial statements of the Company are in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards – IND AS and as per the 
provision of Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and 

stamendments thereof. The standalone financial highlights of the Company for the financial year ended 31  March, 2023 are 
summarized below:

th

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22

Revenue from Operations 291.33 497.76

Other Income 112.65 57.20

Total Income 403.98 554.96

Profit before tax and depreciation -1.67 -409.15

Depreciation 4.29 4.11

Profit before Tax 2.62 -413.21

Deferred Tax -5.21 -0.06

Current Tax 2.20 --

Profit after Taxation 5.63 -413.27

During the year under review Revenue from operations and other income of the Company stood at Rs. 403.98 Lacs as 
compared to previous year’s figure of Rs. 554.96 Lacs showing decreasing trend.  Profit/Loss before tax has stood at Rs. 
2.62 Lacs as compared to previous year’s figure of Rs. -413.21 Lacs. Profit/Loss after tax stood at Rs. 5.63 Lacs as 
compared to previous year’s figure of Rs. -413.27 Lacs.

DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors of the Company decided not to recommend any Dividend on the Equity Shares of the Company for 
stthe financial year ended 31  March, 2023.

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS

During the year under review, there has been no change in the nature of the business of the Company.

AMOUNT TO BE TRANSFERED TO RESERVE

The Board of your Company does not propose to transfer any amount to the General Reserve and has decided to retain the 
entire amount of profit for the Financial Year 2022-23 in the profit and loss account.

DEPOSITS

During the financial year under review, your Company has not accepted any amount as Public Deposits within the meaning 
of provisions of Chapter V – Acceptance of Deposits by Companies of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies 
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

SHARE CAPITAL 
stDuring the year under review there is no change in the Equity Capital Structure of the Company as on 31  March, 2023. The 

brief details of paid up Equity Share Capital of the Company on year end are as follows:

AUTHORIZED CAPITAL:

40,00,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each aggregating to Rs. 400.00 Lakhs.

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL:

30,00,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each aggregating to Rs. 300.00 Lakhs

TRANSFER TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND

There were no funds which were required to be transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund.
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INSURANCE

All properties and insurable interests of the Company have been adequately insured.

PAYMENT OF LISTING FEES

Annual listing fee for the year 2023-2024 has been paid by the Company to BSE Limited where the shares of the Company 
are listed. Annual Custody/Issuer fee for the year 2023-2024 has also been paid by the Company to National Securities 
Depository Limited and Central Depository Services (India) Limited.

HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

Company strongly believes that people are its greatest asset and this has been the focal point of all its Human Resource 
Management (HRM) practices. It emphasis on the freedom to express  views, competitive pay structure, performance 
based  reward system and growth opportunities. It has well documented  and disseminated employee friendly policies to 
enhance transparency, create a sense of team work  and trust among employees and align employee interest with 
organizational strategic goals.

The Company also provide necessary training to enhance the skills of its employees, as per industry requirements. Your 
Company is committed to maintain the highest standards on ethics, learning environment and growth opportunities for  all 
of its employees. 

Employee’s relations were harmonious throughout the year. The Board wishes to place on record their sincere appreciation 
to the co-operation extended by all the employees in maintaining cordial relations.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 

Your Company continues to place greater emphasis on managing its affairs with diligence, transparency, responsibility and 
accountability and is committed to adopting and adhering to best corporate governance practices.

The Listing Regulations (as amended from time to time) has provided exemption under regulation 15(2)(a) from 
applicability of Corporate Governance provisions as specified in regulations 17, 17A, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 24A, 25, 26, 
27 and clauses (b) to (i) and (t) of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 and para C , D and E of Schedule V in respect of listed 
entity having paid-up capital of the Company not exceeding Rs. 10.00 Crore and net worth of the Company not exceeding 
Rs. 25.00 Crore, as on the last day of previous financial year.

Your Company falls under the exemption criteria as laid down under Regulation 15(2)(a) and therefore, is not required 
mandatorily to comply with the said regulations.

The Company therefore is not required to make disclosures in Corporate Governance Report as specified in Para C of 
Schedule V to the Listing Regulations.

Hence no Corporate Governance Report is required to be disclosed/attached with Annual Report. It is important to mention 
that the Company follows majority of the provisions of the Corporate Governance voluntarily.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT

Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review, as stipulated under Regulation 34 (3) read with 
Schedule V (B) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 is presented in a separate section and forms part of the Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors to the best of their knowledge hereby state and 
confirm that:

sta) In the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended  31  March, 2023  the applicable accounting 
standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any;

b) The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently  and made judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to  give a true  and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the 
end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the Company for that period;

c) The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of this Act  for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and 
other irregularities;

d) The Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

e) The Directors have laid down internal financial controls, which are adequate and are operating effectively;

f) The Directors have devised proper systems to  ensure compliance  with the  provisions of all applicable laws and that 
such systems were adequate and operating effectively.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Appointment/Re-appointment

Mrs. Swati Sudesh Oturkar (DIN: 07024890), Director of the Company retires by rotation in accordance with the provisions 
of the Articles of Association of the Company and being eligible offer herself for re-appointment.

During the year Mr. Ritesh Sinvhal (DIN: 07969340) has been re-appointed as an Independent Director of the Company for 
ththe Second term of five consecutive years by the approval of the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting held on 07  

September, 2022.

During the year, Mr. Sunil Gangrade has been re-appointed as Whole-time Director for a period of 3 years w.e.f. 01.03.2022 
thin the Annual General Meeting held on 07  September, 2022. 

Further, the Board of Directors based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the 
Company, approved the following appointment to the Board:

thThe Board of Directors at its meeting held on 14  August, 2023 appointed Mr. Naresh Vyas (DIN: 08247948) as an 
stAdditional cum Independent Director of the Company for a term of five consecutive years with effect from 01  September, 

2023.

The above-mentioned appointment is subject to approval of the Members at the ensuing AGM of the Company. The Board 
propose to appoint him in ensuing annual general meeting.

In the opinion of the Board, the independent directors appointed during the year possess requisite integrity, expertise, 
experience and proficiency.

Details of the proposal for appointment/ re-appointment of Directors are mentioned in the Notice of the Annual General 
Meeting.

Composition of Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

During the year under review, there were no changes occurred in the position of Directors/KMPs of the Company. In 
Compliance with the provisions of Section 149, 152 read with Schedule IV and all other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory 
modification(s) or reenactment thereof for the time being in force) and SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015, as amended, the 
Composition of Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel are as follows:

   Sr. No. Name of Director DIN Designation

   1. Mr. Sunil Gangrade 00169221 Whole-time Director

   2. Mr. Yogender Mohan Sharma 03644480 Independent Director

   3. Mrs. Swati Sudesh Oturkar 07024890 Non-Executive Director

   4. Mr. Ritesh Sinvhal 07969340 Independent Director

The Board of Directors consist of 1 Executive Director, 2 Independent Non-Executive Directors and 1 Non-Executive 
stDirector. As on 31  March, 2023 and on the date of this Report, the Board meets the requirement of having at least one 

women director and not less than 50% of the Board strength comprising of Non-Executive Directors. The number of 
Independent Directors is more than one-third of the total number of Directors.  

The members of the Board of Directors of your Company are expected to possess the required expertise, skill, and 
experience to effectively manage and direct your Company so that it can attain its organisational goals. They are expected 
to be persons with Vision, Leadership Qualities, a Strategic bent of mind, proven competence, and integrity. 

The Company requires skills/expertise/competencies in the areas of Strategy, Finance, Accounting, Economics, legal and 
regulatory matters, Sustainability, Operations of the Company’s businesses to efficiently carry on its core businesses of 
manufacturing of alloy wheels. All the above required skills/expertise/ competencies are available with the Board. 

Each member of the Board of Directors of your Company is expected to ensure that his/her personal interest does not run in 
conflict with your Company’s interests. Moreover, each member is expected to use his/her professional judgment to 
maintain both the substance and appearance of independence and objectivity. 

The Board is satisfied that the current composition reflects an appropriate mix of knowledge, skills, experience, expertise, 
diversity and independence
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Name of the  
General MeetingDirector

16-05-2022 10-08-2022 11-11-2022 10-02-2023 07-09-2022

Mr. Sunil Gangrade

Mr. Yogender 

Mohan Sharma

Mr. Ritesh Sinvhal

Mrs. Swati Sudesh Absent
Oturkar

Date of Annual

Board Meeting and Attendance

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

Date of Board Meeting

Name of the  No. of Shares 
Director held by NED listed entities (Category

as on of Directorship) as on
31.03.2023  31.03.2023.

Directorship Committee Committee 
Chairmanship* Membership*

Mr. Sunil Gangrade — — — N.A. Nil

Mr. Yogender 1 — 2 Nil Sarthak Industries Limited
Mohan Sharma# (Whole-time Director)

Mr. Ritesh Sinvhal — 1 — Nil Nil

Mrs. Swati Sudesh — — — Nil Nil
Oturkar

Directorship in  otherNo. of Directorship / Committee Positions held 
in other Public Limited Companies as on 
31.03.2023.

* Represents Chairmanships/Memberships of Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee.

th# Mr. Yogender Mohan Sharma resigned w.e.f. 17  May, 2023 from the post of Whole-time Director of Sarthak Industries 
Limited and Chairmanships/Memberships of the Committee in which he was appointed.
None of the directors are related to any other director on the Board.

DETAILS OF COMPOSITION AND CATEGORY OF DIRECTORS, ATTENDANCE AT THE BOARD MEETINGS, ANNUAL 
GENERAL MEETING AND SHAREHOLDING OF EACH DIRECTOR:
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Board Independence

Our definition of Independence of Director or Regulations is derived from Regulation 16 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements), 2015 and section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013. The Board Comprised of total 4 directors 

stas on 31  March, 2023 out of them the following directors are Independent Directors;

1. Mr. Yogender Mohan Sharma holding DIN 03644480

2. Mr. Ritesh Sinvhal holding DIN 07969340

Declaration by Independent Director

All Independent Directors have given declarations under section 149(7) that they meet the criteria of independence as laid 
down under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16 of  SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In compliance with Rule 6 of Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, all Independent 
Directors of the Company have registered themselves with the India Institute of Corporate Affairs (IICA), Manesar and have 
included their names in the databank of Independent Directors within the statutory timeline. They have also confirmed that 
they will appear for the online proficiency test, wherever applicable.

Declaration by directors

During the year, declarations received from the Directors of the Company pursuant to Section 164 of the Companies Act, 
2013. Board appraised the same and found that none of the director is disqualified holding office as director.

Independent Directors’ Meeting
thThe Independent Directors of the Company met on 27  February, 2023, pursuant to Schedule IV of the Act and Regulation 

25 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), 2015, both the Independent Directors were present to inter 
alia discuss the following:

i. Reviewed the performance of non-independent directors and the Board as a whole;

ii. Reviewed the performance of the Chairperson of the Company, taking into account the views of executive directors and 
non-executive directors;

iii. Assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company management and the Board 
that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties.

Key Managerial Personnel:

Pursuant to Section 2(51) and Section 203 of the Act read with Rule 8 of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, (as amended), following executives have been designated as Key Managerial 

stPersonnel (KMP) of the Company as on 31  March, 2023:

   Mr. Sunil Gangrade Whole-Time Director

   Mr. Pinkesh Gupta Chief Financial Officer

   Mr. Ankit Joshi Company Secretary
stThere has been no change in the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company during the financial year ended 31  March, 

2023.

LISTING OF SHARES

The equity shares of the Company are listed on the BSE Limited (BSE).

DISCLSOURE RELATED SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES

There are no companies which have become or ceased to be subsidiary, joint venture and / or associate of the company 
during the financial year 2022-23.

Further your Company is not a subsidiary, associate or joint venture of any other Company during the period under review.

As required under Regulations 16(1)(c) and 46 of the Listing Regulations, the Board of Directors have approved the Policy 
for determining Material Subsidiaries. The details of the policy are available on the Company’s website at 
http://www.sarthakglobal.com/upload/investors_file/CTI1617981052.pdf. 

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

During the year, 4 (Four) Board meetings were convened on 16.05.2022, 10.08.2022, 11.11.2022 and 10.02.2023 in 
respect of which meetings proper notices were given and the proceedings were properly recorded and signed. The 
intervening gap between the two consecutive Meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 
2013 and as per the SEBI (Listing Obligation & Disclosure) Regulations, 2015.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

In compliance with both the mandatory and non mandatory requirements under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure requirements) Regulations 2015 and as mandated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the 
Board has constituted the following committees:
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Ii. Audit Committee

ii. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

iii. Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee

iv. Risk Management Committee

The elaborated details of Board Committees are as follows:

A.   AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an Audit Committee in line with the provisions of Regulation 18 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013.

a) Members of Committee:

  S. Name of Director Nature of Directorship Designation in the No. of Meeting
  No. Committee held/ No. of 

Meeting attended

  1. Mr. Ritesh Sinvhal Independent Director Chairman 4/4

  2. Mr. Sunil Gangrade Whole-time Director Member 4/4

  3. Mr. Yogender Mohan Sharma Independent Director Member 4/4

The Audit Committee which met four times during the year 2022-2023, held its meetings on 16.05.2022, 10.08.2022, 
11.11.2022 and 10.02.2023

The Company Secretary is the Secretary of the Committee.

b) Brief terms of reference:

1. Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the 
financial statement is correct, sufficient  and credible;

2. Recommend the appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the Company;

3. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors;

4. Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditors’ report thereon before submission to 
the board for approval, with particular reference to:

i. Matters required to be included in the directors’ responsibility statement to be included in the board’s report in 
terms of clause (c) of sub-section 3 of section 134 of the Act,

ii. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same,

iii. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management,

iv. Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings,

v. Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements,

vi. Disclosure of any related party transactions,

vii. Qualifications in the draft audit report.

5. Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the board for approval;

6. Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses/application of funds raised through an issue (public issue, 
rights issue,  preferential issue,  etc.), the  statement of funds utilised for purposes other than those stated in the 
offer document/ prospectus/notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilisation of 
proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the board to take up steps in this 
matter;

7. Review and monitor the auditors’ independence and performance, and  effectiveness  of audit process;

8. Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties;

9. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

10. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary;

11. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

12. Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the internal control 
systems;

13. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including  the structure  of  the internal audit department, 
staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal 
audit;

14. Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on;
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15. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is suspected 
fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the board;

16. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as post-
audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

17. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders (in 
case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

18. To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism;

19. Approval of appointment of CFO;

20. Establish a vigil mechanism for directors and employees to  report  genuine  concerns in such manner as may be 
prescribed;

21. To review the following information:

i. Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations;

ii. Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the Audit Committee), submitted by 
management;

iii. Management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors;

iv. Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and

v. The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief Internal Auditor.

22. The Audit Committee may call for the comments of the auditors about internal control systems, the scope of audit, 
including  the observations  of the  auditors and  review of financial statement before their submission to the Board and  
may also discuss  any related issues with the internal and statutory auditors and  the management  of the Company.

The terms of reference specified by the Board to the audit committee are as contained under Regulation 18 of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with Section 177 of the Companies Act, 
2013.

thc) Mr. Ritesh Sinvhal, Chairman of the Audit Committee was present in previous Annual General Meeting held on 07  
September, 2022 to answer member’s queries.

B) NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the terms of reference meet with the 
requirements of Regulation 19 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure requirements) Regulations, 2015 and 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

a) Members of Committee:

  S. Name of Director Nature of Directorship Designation in the No. of Meeting
  No. Committee held/ No. of 

Meeting attended

  1. Mr. Ritesh Sinvhal Independent Director Chairman 1/1

  2. Mrs. Swati Sudesh Oturkar Non-Executive Director Member 1/1

  3. Mr. Yogender Mohan Sharma Independent Director Member 1/1

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee which met only one time during the year 2022-2023, held its meeting on 
10.08.2022.

b. Brief terms of reference:

1. formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and 
recommend to the Board of Directors a policy relating to, the remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel 
and other employees;

2. formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of Independent Directors and the Board of Directors;

3. devising a policy on diversity of Board of Directors;

4. identifying persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in Senior management in 
accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board of Directors their appointment and removal.

5. whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the Independent Director, on the basis of the report of 
performance evaluation of Independent Director.

6. recommend the Board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to Senior management. 

7. make recommendations to the Board on the appointment of new Executive and Non-Executive Directors, Key 
Managerial Personnel and other employees;
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8. review the Board structure, size and composition, having regard to the principles of the Code;

9. assess nominees or candidates for appointment or election to the Board, determining whether or not such nominee has 
the requisite qualifications and whether or not he/she is independent; 

10. put in place plans for succession, in particular, for the Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of the 
Company; 

11. make recommendations to the Board for the continuation in services of any Executive Director who has reached the 
age of 70 (Seventy) years; 

12. recommend Directors who are retiring by rotation to be put forward for re-election; 

13. decide whether or not a Director is able to and has been adequately carrying out his duties as a Director of the 
Company, particularly when he has multiple Board representations;

14. recommend to the Board internal guidelines to address the competing time commitments faced by Directors who serve 
on multiple boards; 

15. qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a Director; for evaluation of performance of Independent 
Directors and the Board of Directors;

16. recommend to the Board a framework of remuneration and specific remuneration packages for all Directors of the 
Company, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and other Senior Management Personnel;

17. review the service contracts of the Executive Directors;

18. carry out its duties in the manner that it deems expedient, subject always to any regulations or restrictions that may be 
imposed upon the NRC by the Board of Directors from time to time; 

19. reviewing and enhancing on the compensation structure to incentive performance base for key executives;

20. ensure that the remuneration packages are comparable within the industry and comparable Companies and include a 
performance-related element coupled with appropriate and meaningful measures of assessing individual Executive 
Director’s performance.

21. facilitate the transparency, accountability and reasonableness of the remuneration of Director and Senior 
Management Personnel.

22. recommend to the Board a framework of remuneration for the Directors,

23. all aspects of remuneration, including but not limited to Directors’ fees, salaries, allowances, bonuses, options and 
benefits-in-kind shall be covered by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

a. The details relating to remuneration of Directors, as required under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
requirements) Regulations,  2015, have  been given  under a separate heading, viz. ‘Statement of Disclosure of 
Remuneration’ in this report.

b. Performance Evaluation  Criteria for Independent  Directors:

The performance evaluation criteria for independent directors are determined by the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee on the basis of following criteria:

I. Qualification 

ii. Experience 

iii. Knowledge and Competency 

iv. Fulfillment of functions and integrity including adherence to the Code of Conduct and Code of Independent Directors of 
the Company, safeguarding of the confidential information and the interest of Whistle Blowers under Vigil Mechanism, 
compliance with the policies and disclosure of interest and fulfillment of other obligations imposed by the Law 

v. Contribution and Initiative 

vi. Availability, attendance, participation and ability to function as a team 

vii. Commitment 

viii. Independence 

ix. Independent views and judgement and Guidance/ support to Management outside board

The search and nomination process for new Directors are through database of Independent Directors, personal contacts 
and recommendations of the Director. NRC reviews and assess candidates before making recommendation to the Board. 

NRC also take the lead in identifying, evaluating and selecting suitable candidate for new Directorship. In its search and 
selection process, NRC considers factors such as commitment and the ability of the prospective candidate to contribute to 
discussions, deliberations and activities of the Board and Board Committees.
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a) Members of Committee:

  S. Name of Director Nature of Directorship Designation in the No. of Meeting
  No. Committee held/ No. of 

Meeting attended

  1. Mr. Yogender Mohan Sharma Independent Director Chairman 1/1

  2. Mr. Sunil Gangrade Whole-time Director Member 1/1

  3. Mr. Ritesh Sinvhal Independent Director Member 1/1

The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee which met one time during the year 2022-2023, held its meeting on 
16.05.2023.

b) Name and designation of compliance officer: Mr. Ankit Joshi, Company Secretary.

c) No investor complaints were received during the financial year 2022-2023. All valid share transfers received during the 
styear 2022-2023 have been acted upon by the Company and as on 31  March, 2023 there were nil shares pending for 

transfer.

D) RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Board has constituted the Risk Management Committee in line with the provisions of Regulation 21 of the Listing 
Regulations, read with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and is in due compliance of all the provisions stated 
therein.

a) Members of Committee:

  S. Name of Director Nature of Directorship Designation in the No. of Meeting
  No. Committee held/ No. of 

Meeting attended

  1. Mr.  Yogender Mohan Sharma Independent Director Chairman 2/2

  2. Mrs. Swati Sudesh Oturkar Non-Executive Director Member 2/2

  3. Mr. Sunil Gangrade Whole-time Director Member 2/2

b) Brief terms of reference: 

The terms of reference of the Risk Management Committee include the following: 

1. formulate a detailed risk management policy which shall include: 

a) A framework for identification of internal and external risks specifically faced by the listed entity, in particular 
including financial, operational, sectoral, sustainability (particularly, ESG related risks), information, cyber 
security risks or any other risk as may be determined by the Committee. 

b) Measures for risk mitigation including systems and processes for internal control of identified risks. 

c) Business continuity plan. 

2. ensure that appropriate methodology, processes and systems are in place to monitor and evaluate risks 
associated with the business of the Company; 

3. monitor and oversee implementation of the risk management policy, including evaluating the adequacy of risk 
management systems; 

4. periodically review the risk management policy, at least once in two years, including by considering the 
changing industry dynamics and evolving complexity; 

5. keep the board of directors informed about the nature and content of its discussions, recommendations and 
actions to be taken; 

6. appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief Risk Officer (if any) shall be subject to review by 
the Risk Management Committee.

c) The Committee met two times during the year on 11.11.2022 and 10.02.2023.

C) STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee was constituted as per the provision of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 
2013 and Regulation 20 of the SEBI Listing Regulations. The detailed terms of reference of the Committee are as 
under: 

1. To consider and resolve the grievances of the security holders of the Company including complaints related to 
transfer/transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends, issue of 
new/duplicate certificates etc.; 

2. To review measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders; 

3. To review adherence to the service standards adopted by the Company in respect of various services being 
rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent;
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CODE OF CONDUCT
Regulation 17(5) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 requires Listed Companies to lay down a Code of Conduct for all 
Board members and Senior Management, incorporating the duties as laid down in the Companies Act, 2013. The Company 
has adopted a Code of Conduct for all Directors and Senior Management of the Company and the same has been hosted on 
the website of the Company at
http://www.sarthakglobal.com/upload/investors_file/CTI1617815744.pdf.

All the Board members including Independent Directors and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with 
the code of conduct. Declaration on adherence to the code of conduct is forming part of the Corporate Governance Report.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF BOARD AND ITS COMMITTEES

In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the SEBI Listing Regulations and Guidance note on Board 
evaluation issued by SEBI, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company has 
carried out a formal annual evaluation of the Board, its committees and individual directors. Further, the Board of Directors 
have also carried out the evaluation of the Board as a whole, its committees, Chairman of the Board and all the Individual 
and Independent Directors on the Board.

The performance evaluation of the Board and its committees was made after seeking inputs from all the directors of the 
Company on the basis of effectiveness of board processes, information and functioning, degree of fulfillment of key 
responsibilities towards stakeholders, governance issues, effectiveness of control system in identifying material risks and 
reporting of material violations of policies and law, Board/Committees structure, composition and role clarity, experience 
and competencies, establishment and delineation of responsibilities to committees, frequency of meetings, circulation of 
agenda of the meetings, recording of minutes, adherence to law, Board/Committee culture and dynamics, quality of 
relationship between Board members and the Management, efficacy of communication with external stakeholders, etc.

The Board and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) of the Company evaluated the performance of 
individual directors (including independent directors) based on criteria such as qualifications, experience, knowledge and 
competency, fulfillment of functions and integrity including adherence to Code of Conduct and Code of Independent 
Directors of the Company, safeguarding of the Confidential information and of interest of Whistle Blowers under Vigil 
Mechanism, compliance with policies and disclosures of interest and fulfillment of other obligations imposed by the law, 
contribution and initiative, availability, attendance, participation and ability to function as a team, commitment, 
independence, independent views and judgment and guidance/support to management outside board, etc.

A separate meeting of the Independent Directors was convened on 27.02.2023, which reviewed the performance of the 
Board (as a whole), the non-independent directors and the Chairman and the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of 
information between the Company, Management and the Board, that is necessary for the Board to effectively and 
reasonably perform their duties. Post the meeting, the collective feedback of each of the Independent Directors was 
discussed by the Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee with the Board’s Chairman covering 
performance of the Board as a whole; performance of the Non-Independent Directors.

DETAILS IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company has two tier internal control framework comprising entity level controls and process level controls. The entity 
level controls of the Company include elements such as defined code of conduct, whistle blower policy, rigorous 
management review, MIS and strong internal audit mechanism. The process level controls have been ensured by 
implementing appropriate checks and balances to ensure adherence to Company policies and procedures, efficiency in 
operations and also reduce the risk of frauds. Regular management oversight and rigorous periodic testing of internal 
controls makes the internal controls environment strong at the Company.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

Details of loans, guarantees and investments under the provisions of Section 186 of the Act read with the Companies 
(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, as on March 31, 2023, are set out in Notes to the Financial Statements of 
the Company.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All transactions entered into with Related Parties as defined under the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations 
& Disclosure Requirement) Regulation, 2015 during the financial year were in the ordinary course of business and on an  
arm’s length pricing basis and do not attract the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013. All related party 
transactions were approved by the Audit Committee on omnibus basis or otherwise and the Board. 

Accordingly, the disclosure of RPTs as required under Section 134(3)(h) of the Act in Form No. AOC-2 is not applicable to 
the Company for FY 2022-23 and hence does not form part of this Annual Report.

Hence there is no information to be provided as required under Section 134(3)(h) of the Act read with Rule 8(2) of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.



Annual Report 2022-23

Page 23

SARTHAK GLOBAL LIMITED

The Board has approved a policy for related party transactions which has been uploaded on the Company’s website. The 
web-link as required under SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 is as under:

http://www.sarthakglobal.com/upload/investors_file/CTI1653297745.pdf. 

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

a) The details of date, time and location of Annual General Meetings (AGM) held in last 3 years and Special 
Resolutions passed are as under:

FINANCIAL VENUE DATE & TIME SPECIAL 
YEAR RESOLUTION PASSED

2021-22 AGM held through Video 
Conferencing / Other Audio At 03:30 P.M. follows:
Visual Means. The Registered 1. Re-appointment of Mr. Sunil
Office of the Company was the Gangrade, (DIN - 00169221), as
deemed venue for AGM.  Whole-time Director of the Company

and Fixation of Remuneration.
2. To re-appoint Mr. Ritesh Sinvhal
(DIN: 07969340) as an Independent
Director of the Company for a second
term of five consecutive years.

th2020-21 AGM held through Video 15  September, 2021 One (1) Special Resolution for
Conferencing / Other Audio At 03:30 P.M. payment of remuneration to Mr. Sunil
Visual Means. The Registered  Gangrade, (DIN - 00169221) Whole
Office of the Company was the -time Director of the Company for his
deemed venue for AGM.  remaining tenure.

th2019 - 20 AGM held through Video 28  September, 2020
Conferencing / Other Audio At 03:30 P.M.                           --
Visual Means. The Registered 
Office of the Company was the 
deemed venue for AGM.

All the special resolution, if any, passed in the last three AGM were passes with the requisite majority.
b) Extra-ordinary General Meeting
During the financial year 2022-23, No Extra Ordinary General Meeting of the Company requisite was held.

c) Postal Ballot

No postal ballot was conducted during the year under review. At present, there is no proposal for passing any Special 
Resolution through Postal Ballot.

DISCLOSURES UNDER SECTION 134(3)(L) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

There have been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company since the closure 
stof the financial year i.e. since 31  March, 2023. Further, it is hereby confirmed that there has been no change in the nature 

of business of the Company.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS/ OUTGO

The provisions of Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of conservation of energy and technology 
absorption do not apply to the Company. Accordingly, these particulars have not been provided.

During the year under review, the foreign exchange outflow was NIL (Previous year – NIL) and the foreign exchange 
earning was NIL (Previous year – NIL)

RATIO OF REMUNERATION OF EACH DIRECTOR TO MEDIAN EMPLOYEES’S REMUNERATION AND 
PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

Details of remuneration of Directors, KMPs and Employees as per Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 
5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, are annexed to this report 
as “Annexure – A”. However, as per the provisions of Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Annual Report is being 
sent to the Members and others entitled thereto, excluding the information on employees’ remuneration particulars as 
required under Rule 5 (2) & (3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. 
The disclosure is available for inspection by the Members at the Registered Office of your Company during business hours 
on all working days (except Saturday) of the Company up to the date of the ensuing AGM. Any Member interested in 
obtaining a copy thereof, may write to the Company Secretary of the Company. 

th07  September, 2022 Two (2) Special Resolution passed as
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POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION

In compliance with the requirements of Section 178 of the Act and Regulation 19 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015, the 
Company has laid down a Nomination and Remuneration Policy which has been uploaded on the Company’s website. The 
web-link as required under the Act is as under:
http://www.sarthakglobal.com/upload/investors_file/CTI1626087117.pdf  

VIGIL MECHANISM POLICY

The Company’s Board of Directors, pursuant to the provisions of Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 7 
of the Companies (Meeting of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 has framed “Vigil Mechanism Policy” for Directors and 
Employees of the Company. The policy is to provide a mechanism, which ensures adequate safeguards to employees and 
Directors from any victimization on raising concerns of any violations of legal or regulatory requirements, incorrect or 
misrepresentation of any financial statement and reports and so on.

The same is uploaded on the website of the Company and the web-link as required under SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 is 
as under:

http://www.sarthakglobal.com/assets/pdf/Vigil%20Mechanism_and_Whistle_Blower_Policy
Sarthak_Global_Limited.pdf . 

RISK MANAGEMENT

The management is accountable for the integration of risk management practice into the day to-day activities. The risk 
assessment and minimisation procedures being followed by the management and steps taken by it to mitigate these risks 
are periodically placed before the Board and Audit Committee along with findings of the internal auditors. All the assets of 
the Company are adequately insured. No major elements of the risk exist, which in the opinion of the Board may threaten the 
existence of the company.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

For the year under review the provisions of Section 135 read with Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules 2014, are not applicable to the Company and hence the 
Company has not constituted Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee and formulated Corporate Social 
Responsibility Policy (CSR Policy).

AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REPORT

A)    STATUTORY AUDITOR

M/s. Avinash Agrawal & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration Number: 022666C) were appointed as the Statutory 
ndAuditors of the Company for a period of 5 (five) years till the conclusion of the 42  AGM to be held in the in the year 2027. 

The Notes to the Financial Statements referred in the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory. 

There are no qualifications or reservations, or adverse remarks made by Statutory Auditors of the Company and therefore 
do not call for any comments under Section 134 of the Act. The Auditors’ Report is attached with the Financial Statements in 
this Annual Report.

Reporting of Frauds

There was no instance of fraud during the year under review, which required the Statutory Auditors to report under Section 
143(12) of the Act and the rules made thereunder.

B) SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, the Company has re-
appointed M/s. Amit Preeti & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the 
Company for the financial year 2022-23. The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year 2022-23 is annexed 
herewith as “Annexure -B” forming part of this report.

The comments referred to by the Secretarial Auditors in their Report are self explanatory except the following:

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS COMMENT:

1. The Shareholding of Promoter (s) and Promoters group are not 100% in dematerialized form as required under 
Regulation 31(2) of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015.

2. Company has given certain loans without charging any interest as required under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 
2013 AND Company has given certain loans by charging interest rate less than the prevailing yield of one year, three 
year, five year or ten year government security closest to the tenor of the loan as required under Section 186 of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

EXPLANATION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

1. The Company has informed to the Promoters for the Dematerialization of their holdings.

2. Company having some business opportunities from some parties therefore loan has been given without interest or at 
lower rate of interest, due to some other business benefits. Company will charge proper interest in the current financial 
year.
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C) COST AUDITOR

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 of the Act read with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as 
amended, Notifications/ Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs from time to time, the company is not 
falling under the limits of cost audit requirements.

D) INTERNAL AUDITOR

The Board has appointed M/s. Pramod Garg & Associates (Firm Registration Number: 006256C), as Internal Auditor of 
the company for the financial year 2023-24 and takes his suggestions and recommendations to improve and 
strengthen the internal control systems. The Audit Committee reviews adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s 
internal control environment and monitors the implementation of audit recommendations.

RECONCILIATION OF SHARE CAPITAL AUDIT

In line with the requirements stipulated by Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), Reconciliation of Share 
Capital Audit is carried out on quarterly basis by a Practicing Company Secretary to confirm that the aggregate number 
of equity shares of the Company held in National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Service 
(India) Limited (CDSL) tally with the total number of issued, paid up, listed and admitted capital of the Company. The 
report submitted to the stock exchange inter alia, confirms that the number of shares issued, listed on the stock 
exchange and that held in demat and physical mode is in agreement with each other.

Category Category of Shareholder No. of Shareholder No. of Equity Shares Total shareholding as
a percentage of total
number of shares

Promoter and Promoter Group

Indian Promoter 1 4,26,700 14.22

Promoter Group 14 17,54,900 58.50

Total (Promoter & 15 21,81,600 72.72
Promoter Group)

Public

Institution -- -- -- –

Total (Institutions) -- -- –

Non- Institution Individuals 454 3,47,401 11.58

Hindu Undivided Family 6 12,269 0.41

Bodies Corporate 12 4,58,630 15.29

Non Resident 1 100 0.00
Indians (NRIs)

Total (Non-Institutions) 473 8,18,400 27.28

Total (Public) 473 8,18,400 27.28

Grand Total 488 30,00,000 100.00

stDistribution of Equity Shareholding and its pattern as on 31  March, 2023

Shareholding of 
Nominal Value of Shareholder (In Rs.) %

Rs. 10/- each

Up to 5,000 455 93.24 2,25,625 22,56,250 7.52

5,001 – 10,000 10 2.05 86,460 8,64,600 2.88

10,001 – 20,000 2 0.41 27,915 2,79,150 0.93

20,001 – 30,000 -- -- -- -- –

30,001 – 40,000 2 0.41 80,000 8,00,000 2.67

40,001 – 50,000 -- -- -- -- –

50,001 – 1,00,000 4 0.82 3,19,100 31,91,000 10.64

1,00,001 and above 15 3.07 22,60,900 2,26,09,000 75.36

Total 488 100.00 30,00,000 3,00,00,000 100.00

No. of Holders % of Total No. of Shares held Nominal Value Shareholding 

Distribution of Equity Shareholding 31  March, 2023st
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Status of dematerialization of shares

The breakup of the equity shares held in dematerialized and physical form as on March 31, 2023 is as follows:

  Particulars No. of Shares Percent of Equity

  NSDL 1,46,133 4.87

  CDSL 12,97,267 43.24

  Physical 15,56,600 51.89

  Total 30,00,000 100.00

PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING

The Board of Directors has adopted the code as per SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; The Details of 
the said code is available on website of the Company and can be accessed from
http://www.sarthakglobal.com/upload/investors_file/CTI1617981264.pdf   

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Company have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable Secretarial 
Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and that such systems are adequate and operating 
effectively. During the year under review the Company was in compliance with the Secretarial Standards, i.e., SS-1 and SS-
2, relating to “Meetings of the Board of Directors” and “General Meetings” respectively.

ANNUAL RETURN
stPursuant to Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, the Annual Return as on 31  March, 2023 of the 

Company is available on Company’s website and can be accessed, at http://www.sarthakglobal.com/annual-return. 

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION 
AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace Act, 2013 provides for protection 
against sexual harassment of women at workplace and for the prevention and Redressal of complaints of sexual 
harassment and for matters connected therewith or incidental thereto. 

The Company has framed a Policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment at Workplace as per the provisions of this Act. 
Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) has been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. 

All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this Policy. The Policy is gender neutral. 
There were no cases reported during the year under review under the said Policy

DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE 8(5)(xi) OF COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014 

No application has been made under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code; hence the requirement to disclose the details of 
application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of 2016) during the year 
along with their status as at the end of the financial year is not applicable.

DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE 8(5)(xii) OF COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014 
The requirement to disclose the details of difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of onetime settlement 
and the valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or Financial Institutions along with the reasons thereof, is not 
applicable.

DISCLOSURE WITH RESPECT TO DEMAT SUSPENSE ACCOUNT / UNCLAIMED SUSPENSE ACCOUNT

  PARTICULARS NO. OF NO. OF EQUITY
SHAREHOLDERS SHARES

  aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding shares in the 
  suspense account lying at the beginning of the year – –

  number of shareholders who approached listed entity for transfer of 
  shares from suspense account during the year – –

  number of shareholders to whom shares were transferred from 
  suspense account during the year – –

  aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding shares in the 
  suspense account lying at the end of the year – –

  that the voting rights on these shares shall remain frozen till the 
  rightful owner of such shares claims the shares – –

OTHER DISCLOSURE
Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items as there were no transactions 
on these items during the year under review:
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• The Company has not issued any equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise.
• There were no mergers/acquisitions during the year.
• The Company has not issued any sweat equity shares during the year under review and hence no information as 

per provisions of Rule 8(13) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 is furnished.
• No significant and material orders have been passed by any Regulators or Court or Tribunal which can have an 

impact on the going concern status and the Company’s operation in future.
• There are no shares held by trustees for the benefit of employees and hence no disclosure under Rule 16(4) of the 

Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 has been furnished.
• The Business Responsibility Reporting as required by Regulation 34(2) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, is not applicable to your Company for the financial year ending 
March 31, 2023.

• No Buyback of Securities taken place during the year under review.
• During the year under review, the Company has not failed to implement any Corporate Actions within the specified 

time limit.
• Pursuant to Regulation 30A read with clause 5A to Para A of Part A of Schedule III of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

thDisclosure Requirements) Regulations, 15 as amended on 14  Day of June, 2023, The Company does not have 
any agreement which impact the management or control of the Company.

• Compliance with Mandatory/Non-mandatory requirements:
The Company has complied with the mandatory requirements as stipulated under the SEBI (Listing Obligations & 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the status of non-mandatory (discretionary) requirements are 
given below:

1. Chairman is elected in Meeting.
2. In view of publication of the financial results of the Company in the newspapers having wide circulation and 

dissemination of the same on the website of the Stock Exchange.
3. The Company’s financial statements for the financial year 2022-23 have been accompanied with unmodified 

opinion – both on quarterly and yearly basis.
4. The Chairman is elected in Meeting. No Managing Director in the Company.
5. The Company has complied with the requirements of the regulatory authorities on capital market and no penalties 

have been imposed against it in the last three years.
6. The Company has appointed Mr. Ankit Joshi, Company Secretary as the Nodal Officer for the purpose of 

verification of claims filed with the Company in terms of IEPF Rules and for co-ordination with the IEPF Authority. 
The said details are also available on the website of the Company at http://www.sarthakglobal.com/. 

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

The Statement made in this Report and Management and Discussion and Analysis Report relating to the Company’s 
objective, projections, outlook, expectations and others may be “forward looking statements” within the meaning of 
applicable laws and regulations. Actual results may differ from expectations those expressed or implied. Some factors could 
make difference to the Company’s operations that may be, due to change in government policies, global market conditions, 
foreign exchange fluctuations, natural disasters etc.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND APPRECIATION

Your Directors wish to express their grateful appreciation for the co-operation and continued support received from 
customers, parent company, collaborators, vendors, investors, shareholders, financial institutions, banks, regulatory 
authorities and the society at large during the year. We also place on record our appreciation for the contribution made by 
our employees at all levels and for their commitment, hard work and support.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors       For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

SUNIL GANGRADE SWATI SUDESH OTURKAR
Whole-time Director Director
DIN:  00169221  DIN: 07024890

Place: Indore
thDated: 29  August, 2023
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ANNEXURE-A

STATEMENT OF DISCLOSURE OF REMUNERATION
Pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

(I) The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company 
for the financial year:

   Executive Director Ratio of median remuneration

   Mr. Sunil Gangrade 2.21

   Non-Executive Director*

   Mr. Yogender Mohan Sharma 0.03

   Mrs. Swati Sudesh Oturkar 0.03

   Mr. Ritesh Sinvhal 0.03

* Non-Executive Directors were paid sitting fees for attending the meetings.

(ii) The percentage increase in remuneration of each director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, 
Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year:

   Name Designation % increase in the remuneration 

   Mr. Sunil Gangrade Whole-time Director 4.88

   Mr. Yogender Mohan Sharma Non-Executive Independent Director –

   Mrs. Swati Sudesh Oturkar Non-Executive Director –

      Mr. Ritesh Sinvhal Non-Executive Independent Director –

   Mr. Pinkesh Gupta Chief Financial Officer 16.13

   Ms. Ankit Joshi Company Secretary 14.07

                  

(iii) The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year: 10.80%

(iv) The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company: 11

(v) Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in 
the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and 
justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial 
remuneration:

Average percentile increase in remuneration of employees other than managerial personnel was 10.10% and average 
increase in remuneration of managerial personnel was around 35%.

(vi) Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company.

It is affirmed that remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company.

(vii) Statement containing the particulars of employees in accordance with Rule 5(2) of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014: 

i. List of employees of the Company employed throughout the financial year 2022-23 and were paid remuneration 
not less than Rs. 1.2 Crore per annum or in excess of that drawn by a Whole-time Director – Nil 

ii. Employees employed for the part of the year and were paid remuneration during the financial year 2022-23 at a 
rate which in aggregate was not less than Rs. 8.5 lakhs per month: Nil.
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ANNEXURE-B

FORM NO. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
stFOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31  MARCH, 2023

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
SARTHAK GLOBAL LIMITED
(CIN: L99999MH1985PLC136835)
609, Floor-6, West Wing, Tulsiani Chambers, Nariman Point,
Mumbai City (MH) - 400021

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 
corporate practices by Sarthak Global Limited (CIN: L99999MH1985PLC136835) (hereinafter called the Company). The 
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/ 
statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. It is further stated that we have also relied up on the scanned 
documents and other papers in digital/ electronic mode submitted to us by the official of the Company for the financial year 

stended on 31  March, 2023.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company and also the information provided in digital/ electronic mode by the Company, its officers, 
agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the 

stCompany has, during the audit period covering the Financial Year ended on 31  March, 2023 (“Audit Period”), complied 
with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance 
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by Sarthak 
stGlobal Limited (“the Company”) for the financial year ended on 31  March, 2023 according to the provisions of:

(I) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and  the rules made thereunder;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder 

(iv)   Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign 
Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings (Not applicable to the Company 
during the audit period)

(v)   The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 
(‘SEBI Act’):- 

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011, 
as amended from time to time;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, as amended from 
time to time;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 
(Not applicable to the Company during the audit period)

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 and Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations 2021 (Not 
applicable to the Company during the audit period); 

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 and 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations 2021 (Not 
applicable to the Company during the audit period);
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(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 
1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021 (Not  applicable to 
the Company during the audit period); 

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 (Not applicable to the 
Company during the audit period); 

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015, as amended from time to time.

(vi)  I have relied on the representation made by the Company and its officers for systems and mechanism formed by the 
Company for compliances under other applicable Acts, laws and Regulations to the Company.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of 
Company Secretaries of India.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, 
Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the following observations:

1. The shareholding of Promoter (s) and Promoters group are not 100% in dematerialized form as required under 
Regulation 31(2) of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015.

2. Company has given certain loans without charging any interest as required under Section 186 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 AND Company has given certain loans by charging interest rate less than the prevailing 
yield of one year, three year, five year or ten year government security closest to the tenor of the loan as 
required under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive 
Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the 
period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at 
least seven days in advance other than those held at shorter notice, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further 
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Board decisions are carried out with unanimous consent and therefore, no dissenting views were required to be captured 
and recorded as part of the minutes

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and 
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period there were no instance of:

(1) Public / Rights / Preferential issue of Shares / Debentures / Sweat Equity 

(2) Redemption/Buy Back of Securities. 

(3) Major decisions taken by the members in pursuance to Section 180 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

(4) Foreign Technical Collaborations. 

(5) Merger / Amalgamation / Reconstruction etc.

For M/s. Amit Preeti & Associates
Company Secretaries

Place: Indore
thDate: 29  August, 2023     

CS Amit Jain
                                              Proprietor

C.P. No. 24303; F.C.S. No. 7859
                                                                                   UDIN: F007859E000869654
 Peer Review Certificate No.: 1945 / 2022
 PCS Unique ID NO.: S2021MP797500

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as ‘Annexure I’ and forms an integral part of this 
report.
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Annexure I to Secretarial Audit Report
To,
The Members,
SARTHAK GLOBAL LIMITED
(CIN: L99999MH1985PLC136835)
609, Floor-6, West Wing, Tulsiani Chambers, Nariman Point,
Mumbai City (MH) - 400021

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 
correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct 
facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the company.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation and certification about the compliance of 
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the 
responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

For M/s. Amit Preeti & Associates
Company Secretaries

Place: Indore
thDate:  29  August, 2023     

 CS Amit Jain
                                              Proprietor

C.P. No. 24303; F.C.S. No. 7859
                                                                                   UDIN:  F007859E000869654

Peer Review Certificate No.: 1945 / 2022
PCS Unique ID NO.: S2021MP797500
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

GLOBAL ECONOMIC

Overview: The global economic growth was estimated at a slower 3.2% in 2022, compared to 6% in 2021 (which was on a 
smaller base of 2020 on account of the pandemic effect). The relatively slow global growth of 2022 was marked by the 
Russian invasion of Ukraine, unprecedented inflation, pandemic- induced slowdown in China, higher interest rates, global 
liquidity squeeze and quantitative tightening by the US Federal Reserve.

The challenges of 2022 translated into moderated spending, disrupted trade and increased energy costs. Global inflation 
was 8.7% in 2022, among the highest in decades. US consumer prices increased about 6.5% in 2022, the highest in four 
decades. The Federal Reserve raised its benchmark interest rate to its highest in 15 years. The result is that the world ended 
in 2022 concerned that the following year would be slower.

The global equities, bonds, and crypto assets reported an aggregated value drawdown of US$ 26 trillion from peak, 
equivalent to 26% of the global gross domestic product (GDP). In 2022, there was a concurrently unique decline in bond and 
equity markets; 2022 was the only year when the S&P 500 and 10-year US treasuries delivered negative returns of more 
than 10%.

Gross FDI inflows – equity, reinvested earnings and other capital – declined 8.4% to US$ 55.3 billion in April- December. 
The decline was even sharper in the case of FDI inflows as equity: these fell 15% to US$ 36.75 billion between April and 
December 2022. Global trade expanded by 2.7% in 2022 (expected to slow to 1.7% in 2023).

The S&P GSCI TR (Global benchmark for commodity performance) fell from a peak of 4,319.55 in June 2022 to 3,495.76 in 
December 2022. There was a decline in crude oil, natural gas, coal, lithium, lumber, cobalt, nickel and urea realisations. 
Brent crude oil dropped from a peak of around US$ 120 per barrel in June 2022 to US$ 80 per barrel at the end of the 
calendar year following the enhanced availability of low-cost Russian oil.

   Regional growth (%) FY 2023 FY2022

   World output 3.2 6.1

   Advanced economies 2.5 5.0

   Emerging and developing economies 3.8 6.3

Performance of major economies 

United States: Reported GDP growth of 2.1% compared to 5.9% in 2021.

China: GDP growth was 3% in 2022 compared to 8.1% in 2021.

United Kingdom: GDP grew by 4.1% in 2022 compared to 7.6% in 2021.

Japan: GDP grew 1.7% in 2022 compared to 1.6% in 2021.

Germany: GDP grew 1.8% compared to 2.6% in 2021.

Outlook

The global economy is expected to grow 2.8% in 2023, influenced by the ongoing Russia-Ukraine conflict. Concurrently, 
global inflation is projected to fall marginally to 7%. Despite these challenges, there are positive elements within the global 
economic landscape. The largest economies like China, the US, the European Union, India, Japan, the UK, and South 
Korea are not in a recession. Approximately 70% of the global economy demonstrates resilience, with no major financial 
distress observed in large emerging economies. The energy shock in Europe did not result in a recession, and significant 
developments, including China’s progressive departure from its strict zero-Covid policy and the resolution of the European 
energy crisis, fostered optimism for an improved global trade performance. Despite high inflation, the US economy 
demonstrated robust consumer demand in 2022. Driven by these positive factors, global inflation is likely to be still relatively 
high at 4.9% in 2024. Interestingly, even as the global economy is projected to grow less than 3% for the next five years, 
India and China are projected to account for half the global growth.

(Source: IMF)
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INDIAN ECONOMIC OVERVIEW

Overview: Even as the global conflict remained geographically distant from India, ripples comprised increased oil import 
bills, inflation, cautious government and a sluggish equity market. India’s economic growth is estimated at 6.8% in 2022-23. 
India emerged as the second fastest-growing G20 economy in 2022-23. India overtook UK to become the fifth-largest global 
economy. India surpassed China to become the world’s most populous nation (Source: IMF, World Bank)

   Growth of the Indian economy

FY 20 FY 21 FY 22 FY23E

Real GDP growth (%) 3.7 -6.6 8.7 6.8

Growth of the Indian economy quarter by quarter, 2022-23

Q1FY23 Q2FY23 Q3FY23 Q4FY23

Real GDP growth (%) 13.1 6.3 4.4 4.9

(Source: Budget FY24; Economy Projections, RBI projections)

According to the India Meteorological Department, the year 2022 delivered 8% higher rainfall over the long-period average. 
Due to unseasonal rains, India’s wheat harvest was expected to fall to around 102 million metric tons (MMT) in 2022-23 from 
107 MMT in the preceding year. Rice production at 132 million metric tonnes (MMT) was almost at par with the previous 
year. Pulses acreage grew to 31 million hectares from 28 million hectares. Due to a renewed focus, oilseeds area increased 
7.31% from 102.36 lakh hectares in 2021-22 to 109.84 lakh hectares in 2022-23.

India’s auto industry grew 21% in 2023; passenger vehicle (UVs, cars and vans) retail sales touched a record 3.9 million 
units in 2023, crossing 3.2 million units in 2019. The commercial vehicles segment grew 33%. Two-wheeler sales fell to a 
seven-year low; the three- wheeler category grew 84%.

Till the end of Q3FY23, total gross non- performing assets (NPAs) of the banking system fell to 4.5% from 6.5% a year ago. 
Gross NPA for 2023 was expected to be 4.2% and a further drop is predicted to 3.8% in 2023-24.

As India’s domestic demand remained steady amidst a global slowdown, import growth in 2023 was estimated at 16.5% to 
US$ 714 billion as against US$ 613 billion in 2022. India’s merchandise exports were up 6% to US$ 447 billion in 2023. 
India’s total exports (merchandise and services) in 2023 grew 14 percent to a record of US$ 775 billion in 2023 and is 
expected to touch US$ 900 billion in 2024. Till Q3FY23, India’s current account deficit, a crucial indicator of the country’s 
balance of payments position, decreased to US$ 18.2 billion, or 2.2% of GDP. India’s fiscal deficit was estimated in nominal 
terms at ~ Rs. 17.55 lakh crore and 6.4% of GDP for the year ending March 31, 2023. (Source: Ministry of Trade & 
Commerce)

India’s headline foreign direct investment (FDI) numbers rose from US$ 74.01 billion in 2021 to a record US$ 84.8 billion in 
2021-22, a 14% Y-o-Y increase, till Q3FY23. India recorded a robust US$ 36.75 billion of FDI. In 2022-23, the government 
was estimated to have addressed 77% of its disinvestment target (Rs. 50,000 crore against a target of Rs. 65,000 crore). 

India’s foreign exchange reserves, which had witnessed three consecutive years of growth, experienced a decline of 
approximately US$ 70 billion in 2022, primarily influenced by rising inflation and interest rates. Starting from US$ 606.47 
billion on April 1, 2022, reserves decreased to US$ 578.44 billion by March 31, 2023. The Indian currency also weakened 
during this period, with the exchange rate weakening from Rs. 75.91 to a US dollar to Rs. 82.34 by March 31, 2023, driven by 
a stronger dollar and increasing current account deficit. Despite these factors, India continued to attract investable capital.

The country’s retail inflation, measured by the consumer price index (CPI), eased to 5.66% in March 2023. Inflation data on 
the Wholesale Price Index, WPI (calculates the overall price of goods before retail) eased to 1.3% during the period. In 2022, 
CPI hit its highest of 7.79% in April; WPI reached its highest of 15.88% in May 2022. By the close of the year under review, 
inflation had begun trending down and in April 2023 declined below 5%, its lowest in months.

India’s total industrial output for FY23, as measured by the Index of Industrial Production or IIP, grew 5.1% year-on- year as 
against a growth of 11.4% in 2021-22.

rdIndia moved up in the Ease of Doing Business (EoDB) rankings from 100th in 2017 to 63  in 2022. As of March 2023, India’s 
unemployment rate was 7.8%.

In 2022-23, total receipts (other than borrowings) were estimated at 6.5% higher than the Budget estimates. Tax-GDP ratio 
was estimated to have improved by 11.1% Y-o-Y in RE 2022-23. 
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The total gross collection for 2023 was Rs. 18.10 lakh crore, an average of Rs. 1.51 lakh crore a month and up 22% from 
2021-22, India’s monthly goods and services tax (GST) collections hit the second highest ever in March 2023 to Rs. 1.6 lakh 
crore. For 2022–23, the government collected Rs. 16.61 lakh crore in direct taxes, according to data from the Finance 
Ministry. This amount was 17.6% more than what was collected in the previous fiscal.

Per capita income almost doubled in nine years to Rs. 172,000 during the year under review, a rise of 15.8% over the 
previous year. India’s GDP per capita was 2,320 US$ (March 2023), close to the magic figure of US$ 2500 when 
consumption spikes across countries. Despite headline inflation, private consumption in India witnessed continued 
momentum and was estimated to have grown 7.3% in 2022-23.

Outlook: There are green shoots of economic revival, marked by an increase in rural growth during the last quarter and 
appreciable decline in consumer price index inflation to less than 5% in April 2023. India is expected to grow around 6-6.5% 
(as per various sources) in 2024, catalysed in no small measure by the government’s 35% capital expenditure growth by the 
government. The growth could also be driven by broad-based credit expansion, better capacity utilisation and improving 
trade deficit. Headline and core inflation could trend down. Private sector investments could revive. What provides optimism 
is that even as the global structural shifts are creating a wider berth for India’s exports, the country is making its largest 
infrastructure investment. This unprecedented investment is expected to translate into a robust building block that, going 
ahead, moderates logistics costs, facilitates a quicker transfer of products and empowers the country to become 
increasingly competitive. This can benefit India’s exports in general, benefiting several sectors. The construction of national 
highways in 2022-23 was 10,993 km; the Ministry of Road Transport and Highways awarded highway contracts of 12,375 
km in the last financial year (Source: IMF).

The global landscape favours India: Europe is moving towards a probable recession, the US economy is slowing, China’s 
GDP growth forecast of 4.4% is less than India’s GDP estimate of 6.8% and America and Europe are experiencing its 
highest inflation in 40 years.

India’s production-linked incentive appears to catalyse the downstream sectors. Inflation is steady. India is at the cusp of 
making significant investments in renewable energy and other sectors and emerging as a suitable industrial supplement to 
China. India is poised to outpace Germany and Japan and emerge as the third-largest economy by the end of the decade. 
The outlook for private business investment remains positive despite an increase in interest rates. India is less exposed to 
Chinese economic weakness, with much less direct trade with China than many Asian peers.

Broad-based credit growth, improving capacity utilisation, government’s thrust on capital spending and infrastructure 
should bolster investment activity. According to our surveys, manufacturing, services and infrastructure sector firms are 
optimistic about the business outlook. The downside risks are protracted geopolitical tensions, tightening global financial 
conditions, and slowing external demand.

UNION BUDGET 2023-24 PROVISIONS

The Budget 2022-23 sought to lay the foundation for the future of the Indian economy by raising capital investment outlay by 
33% to Rs. 10 lakh crores, equivalent to 3.3% of GDP and almost three times the 2019-20 outlay, through various projects 
like PM Gatishakti, Inclusive Development, Productivity Enhancement & Investment, Sunrise Opportunities, Energy 
Transition and Climate Action, as well as Financing of Investments. An outlay of Rs. 5.94 lakh crore was made to the Ministry 
of Defence (13.18% of the total Budget outlay). An announcement of nearly Rs. 20,000 crores was made for the PM Gati 
Shakti National Master Plan to catalyse the infrastructure sector. An outlay of Rs. 1.97 lakh crore was announced for 
Production Linked Incentive schemes across 13 sectors. The Indian government intends to accelerate road construction in 
2023-24 by 16-21% to 12,000-12,500 km. The overall road construction project pipeline remains robust at 55,000 km 
across various execution stages. These realities indicate that a structural shift is underway that could strengthen India’s 
positioning as a long-term provider of manufactured products and its emergence as a credible global supplier of goods and 
services.

Industrial Structure and Developments

Your Company is a registered Share Transfer Agent from SEBI since 1995. It is successfully handling share transfer 
activities for various client Companies & serving more than 1,00,000 shareholders. In compliance with SEBI’s circular of 
single point share transfer & Demat  activities, the Company has taken direct electronic connectivity from both the 
depositories i.e. the National Securities Depository Ltd. (NSDL) & the Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL).

Opportunities and Threats

Any geopolitical changes especially between Russia-Ukraine, any policy change by OPEC may change the outlook of 
Crude prices. Energy prices are key to the price trend of other commodities. A deep slowdown in Europe may affect the 
global demand  and it may demolish  the other countries as well.
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Accordingly as of March 31, 2023, based on the facts and circumstances existing as of that date. Due to COVID-19 
pandemic and Russia-Ukraine war, the situation is uncertain and it is difficult to predict when economies will fully normalize. 
Hence, FY 2023-24 is likely to be a challenging year.

Opportunities 

• India’s Growth Rate 

• Financial Inclusion 

• Utilize technology to provide more efficient solutions

• Increased retail participation in capital markets

• Regulatory reforms would aid greater participation by all class of investors.

Threats 

• Volatile environment 

• Fiscal deficit and current account deficit 

• Inflation and economic slowdown 

• Competition

Outlook

Your Company is now exploring opportunities to get more business from corporate in the field of share transfer & other 
capital market activities. The management is optimistic about the future outlook of the Company. The industry witnessed 
testing times with global economic slowdown and weakening profitability and tightening of financial conditions, still the 
Company has demonstrated its ability to withstand the challenges posed by the current environment.

Risk and concerns

The Company like any other Company is exposed to specific risks that are particular to its business and the environment 
within which it operates. The company is exposed to the market risk, which inter alia includes economic/business cycle, 
interest rate volatility and credit risk. While the Indian economy has shown sustained growth over the years, the Company is 
confident of managing these risks by maintaining a conservative financial profile, and by following prudent business and risk 
management practices.

Competition from existing and prospective registrar & share transfer agents may affect the profitability of the company. The 
Company is exposed to risks from change in policy of similar Companies; changes in Govt. Policies/SEBI policies, etc. 
which may affect profitability and working of the Company.

Internal Control System and their adequacy

Your Company has good and effective internal control systems, which provide efficiency of operations, financial reporting, 
proper recording and safeguarding of assets, compliance with applicable laws and regulations, etc.

The adequacy of the same has been reported by the statutory auditors of your Company in their report.

Financials

Your Company has succeeded in achieving satisfactory results for the financial year 2022-2023:

                                                                                                                              (Amount ` in lacs)

Balance Sheet As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Share Capital 300.00 300.00

Reserve & Surplus -135.70 -141.33

Non-current Liabilities 1488.45 918.08

Current Liabilities 627.77 1617.15

Non-current Assets 78.94 477.15

Current Assets 2201.58 2216.75
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                                                                                                                              (Amount ` in lacs)

Profit and Loss Account For the year ended For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Total Revenue 403.98 554.96

Profit/ (Loss)  before tax and depreciation -1.67 -409.15

Depreciation and amortization 4.29 4.11

Profit after tax 2.62 -413.27

Earnings Per Share 0.19 -13.77

Human Resource Development and Industrial Relations:

The Company is being equipped with all the modern amenities like Intranet, Internet & latest models of computers & 
printers. By intensive training from both the depositories and upgradation of systems & software, transfer & Demat work is 
being managed successfully.

Your Company considers the quality of its human resources to be the most important asset and constantly endeavors to 
attract and recruit best possible talent. Our training programs emphasize on general management perspective to business. 
The Company continues to empower its people and provide a stimulating professional environment to its officers to excel in 
their respective functional disciplines.

The industrial relations of the Company continue to remain harmonious and cordial with focus on improving productivity and 
quality. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company as on 31.03.2023 is 11.

Changes (change of 25% or more) in Significant Key Financial Ratios and Return on Net Worth

As per the latest amendment as introduced by SEBI via SEBI (Listing Obligations &amp; Disclosure Requirement) 
(Amendment) Regulations, 2018 on May 09, 2018 effective from April 01, 2019, new sub- clause (i) has been inserted in 
Clause I in Part B of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations &amp; Disclosure Requirement), Regulations, 2015 according 
to which the listed entity shall provide the details of significant changes (I.e. change of 25% or more as compared to the 
immediately previous financial year) in key financial ratios, along with the detailed explanations thereof, including:

S. No. Particular Numerator Denominator 2022- 2021- Remarks
2023 2022

1. Debtors Total Sales Avg. Accounts 1.15 0.44 The unrealizable trade
Turnover Receivable receivables were written
Ratio (Times) off in preceeding year. It

resulted in improved ratio
in current year.

2. Inventory Cost of Average 9.73 6.07 Increase in carrying
Turnover goods sold Inventory amount of Inventories.
Ratio (Times) OR sales

3. Interest EBIT Interest 1.03 -6.04 The Company incurred
Coverage significant expenses
Ratio (Times) under the head other

expenses in
preceeding year which
resulted in losses before tax.
It also resulted in negative

4. Current Ratio Current Current 3.51 1.37 Payment of significant
(Times) Assets Liabilities amount of creditors lead

to improvement in current
ratio.

5. Debt Equity Total Debt Shareholders’ 11.55 6.36 Significant increase in
borrowings lead to Ratio
(Times) Equity increase in
debt-equity ratio
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S. No. Particular Numerator Denominator 2022- 2021- Remarks
2023 2022

6. Operating Operating Sales 0.32 -0.74 The Company incurred
Profit Margin Profit (EBIT) significant expenses
(% terms) under the head other

expenses in
preceeding year which
resulted in losses before tax.
It also resulted in negative
ratio in preceeding year.
However, the company
earned profits in current
year and ratio improved

7. Net Profit Net Profits Sales 0.02 -0.86 The Company incurred
Margin (% after taxes significant expenses
terms) under the head other

expenses in
preceeding year which
resulted in losses before tax.
It also resulted in negative
ratio in preceeding year.
However, the company
earned profits in current
year and ratio improved

8. Return on Net Profits Net Worth 0.03 -1.13 The Company incurred
Net Worth after taxes (Average significant expenses
(% terms) Shareholders’ under the head other

Funds) expenses in
preceeding year which
resulted in losses before tax.
It also resulted in negative
ratio in preceeding year.
However, the company
earned profits in current year
and ratio improved.

Cautionary Statement

Statements in this Management Discussion &amp; Analysis describing the Company’s objectives, projections, estimates, 
expectations or predictions may be “forward looking statements” within the meaning of applicable laws and regulations. 
Actual results could differ materially from those expressed or implied. Important factors that could make a difference to the 
Company’s operations include economic developments in the country and improvement in the state of capital markets, 
changes in the  Government regulations, tax laws and other status and other incidental factors

Disclosure of Accounting Treatment in Preparation Of financial statements:

The Company has followed the guidelines of accounting standards as mandated by the Central Government in preparation 
of its financial statements.
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Independent Auditors Report

To,
The Members of
Sarthak Global Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion
We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Sarthak Global Ltd. (herein referred to as “the Company”), which 
comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2023, and the statement of Profit and Loss (including other Comprehensive Income), the 
standalone statement of changes in equity and the standalone statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the 
standalone financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the 
information required by the Companies Act 2013 (“the Act”)  in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of 
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023 and its profits and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the 
year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit 
of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and rules made there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the standalone financial 
statements of the current period. These matters are addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in 
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

I. Investments in quoted equity instruments, unquoted equity 
instruments and mutual funds having carrying value of Rs. 20.28 lakhs. 
(Refer Note 4 to the financial statements).

The Company holds investments having carrying value of Rs. 20.28 
lakhs as at the reporting date. 

We have decided this item as a key audit matter because the value of 
investments in equity and mutual funds are subject to fair valuation and it 
is therefore susceptible to misstatement.

Our audit procedures included the following:
ü Understanding the Company’s processes and procedures for initial measurement 

and subsequent measurement of investments.
ü Testing the design, implementation and operating effectiveness of Company’s 

general IT controls, key manual and application controls over the Company’s IT 
systems. They cover control over initial measurement and subsequent 
measurement of investments.

ü Inspecting on sample basis, documents for valuation, and assessing the 
company’s policy for initial measurement and subsequent measurement of 
investments with reference to the requirements of the applicable accounting 
standards.

ü Assessing the methods used to carry out initial and measurement and subsequent 
measurement and ensuring ourselves of the consistency of accounting methods.

ü Testing of cutoffs and performing analytical review procedures. 
ü Checking completeness and accuracy of the data used by the Company for initial 

measurement and subsequent measurement of investments.
ü Assessing of appropriateness of disclosures provided in the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises 
the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our 
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing 
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that 
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 
regard.

Key Audit Matters How the matter was addressed in our Audit



Management’s and Board of Directors’ responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with 
respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial 
performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted 
in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance 
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant 
to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or has not realistic alternative to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for over viewing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the SAs will always 
detect material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decision of the users taken on the 
basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout 
the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on 
whether the Company has adequate internal financial control system in place and the operating effectiveness of such control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by management and Board of Directors.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s and Board of Director’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we 
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of 
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the disclosures, and 
whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation.

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the Company to express an opinion on the 
financial statements

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it 
probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We 
consider quantitative materiality qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our 
work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of audit 
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charge with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be though to 
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We 
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation preclude public disclosure about the matter or when, in 
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that:
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 

necessary for the purpose of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books.

c) The standalone balance sheet, the standalone statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), 
the standalone statement of changes in equity and the standalone statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this report are in 
agreement with relevant books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards specified 
under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023 taken on record by the Board of 
Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 
164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion 
on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting. 

2. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit 
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us:

i. The Company has no pending litigations. 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses. 

iii. There is no amount required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in notes 5(ii), 9(ii),9(iii) 
and 9(iv) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or 
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)  by the company to or in any other persons or entities, including 
foreign entities (“intermediaries) with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary 
shall :

• directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate beneficiary”) 
by or on behalf of the company, or

• provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in notes 5(ii), 9(ii) and 9(iii) to 
the financial statements, no funds have been received by the company from any persons or entities, including foreign 
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall:

• directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate 
Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Funding Party, or

• provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to 
our notice that has caused to us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (iv)(a) and (iv)(b) contain any 
material misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

3. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its 
directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with schedule V of the Act. The 
remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid under section 197 read with schedule V of the Act.

4. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the order”) issued by the Central Government in terms of 
section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraph 3 and 4 of the order, to 
the extent applicable.

For Avinash Agrawal & Co.
Chartered Accountants                                                                  
(FR No. 022666C) 

(CA Avinash Agrawal)                                                             
(Membership No. 410875) 
Proprietor
UDIN: 23410875BGXUAX8709

Place: Indore 
Date: 26/05/2023
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ANNEXURE –A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements section of our report to the 

members of Sarthak Global Limited)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

Opinion 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/S Sarthak Global Limited (“the Company”) as of 31  March 
2023 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material respects, an 
adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 
operating effectively as at 31  March, 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company’s management and Board of Directors of the Company are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components 
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of 
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the 
“Guidance Note”) issued by ICAI and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the 
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over 
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an 
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.                                     

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) 
pertain to the maintenance of records, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of 
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being 
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a 
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper 
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control 
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate.

For Avinash Agrawal & Co.
Chartered Accountants                                                                  
(FR No. 022666C) 

(CA Avinash Agrawal)                                                             
(Membership No. 410875) 
Proprietor
UDIN: 23410875BGXUAX8709

Place: Indore 
Date: 26/05/2023

st

st
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Standalone 
Financial Statements of Sarthak Global Limited for the year ended 31   March 2023

(Referred to in paragraph 4, under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our Report of even date)

(i) (a) (A) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of property, 
plant and equipment.

(B) The company has no intangible assets as at the reporting date.

(b) The company has a regular programme of physical verification of its property, plant and equipment by which all property, plant 
and equipment are verified in a phased manner. In accordance with this programme, certain property, plant and equipment were 
verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the 
Company and nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

 (c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the 
Company does not hold any immovable property. Accordingly, the sub-clause (c) is not applicable to the Company. 

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the 
Company has not revalued its Property, plant and equipment during the year.Accordingly, the sub-clause (d) is not applicable to 
the Company. 

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, 
there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of 
Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.Accordingly, the sub-clause (e) is not applicable to the 
Company. 

(ii) (a) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion, the frequency of such verification 
is reasonable and procedures and coverage as followed by management were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on 
verification between the physical stocks and the book records that were 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the 
Company has been sanctioned over draft limits which does not exceed rupees five crore, in aggregate, from banks on the basis 
of security of current assets. Accordingly, the sub-clause (b) is not applicable to the Company. 

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the 
Company has neithermade investments in, nor provided guarantee or security to companies, firms limited liability partnership or any 
other parties during the year. The Company has granted unsecured loans to companies and other person in respect of which the 
requisite information is as below-

(a) Based on the audit procedures carried out by us and as per the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 
provided loans to other entities during the year as follows –

           

Particulars Loans

Aggregate amount granted / provided during 
the year ended 31  March 2023
- Subsidiaries, joint ventures and Nil

associates

- Others 7044.56

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet 
date- 31  March 2023 Nil

- Subsidiaries, joint ventures and 
associates Nil

- Others 1810.50

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures conducted by us, certain loans have 
been made without charging interest and without obtaining any security. The details of such loans are as follows –

                                                       

Entity Carrying amount of loan as at year ended 
31  March 2023

Kaytha Enterprises Private Limited 50.00

Mahadev Shahra & Sons 4.50

Rashika Agri Tech 2.51

Samtulya Infratech Pvt. Ltd 184.52

Shri Nitesh Shahra   10.00

st

(Amount ̀  in lacs)

st

st

(Amount ̀  in lacs)

st
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Further, certain loans have been made by charging interest rate at 6% which is less than the prevailing yield of government 
security closest to the tenor.The details of such loans are as follows –

Entity Carrying amount of loan as at year 
ended 31  March 2023

BFCL Terminals Private Limited 789.91 lakhs

Bharat Foods Co-op Ltd. 428.30 lakhs 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans for which schedule of repayment of 
principal and payment of interest has been stipulated. Therefore, sub-clauses (d) and (e) of clause (iii) are not applicable to 
the Company.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has granted loans repayable on demand during the year.The details of such loans are –

Particulars Other than Promoters / Related parties

Aggregate amount of loans
- Repayable on demand 7044.56

- Agreement does not specify any Nil
  terms or period of repayment

Total 7044.56

Percentage of loans/advances in 100%
the nature of loans to the total loans

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of records of the Company, in 
respect of loans and investments, in our opinion the provisions of Sections185 of the Act have been complied with. However, 
the provisions of section 186 of the Act has not been complied to the following extent –

Certain loans have been made without charging interest. The details of such loans are as follows –

Entity Carrying amount of loan as at year 
ended 31  March 2023

Kaytha Enterprises Private Limited  50.00

Mahadev Shahra & sons     4.50

Rashika Agri Tech     2.51

Samtulya Infratech Pvt. Ltd. 184.52

Shri Nitesh Shahra   10.00

Further, certain loans have been made by charging interest rate at 6% which is less than the prevailing yield of government 
security closest to the tenor.The details of such loans are as follows –

Entity Carrying amount of loan as at year 
ended 31  March 2023

BFCL Terminals Private Limited 789.91 lacs

Bharat Foods Co-op Ltd. 428.30 lacs 

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the public. Accordingly, 
clause 3(v) of the order is not applicable.

(vi) The Central Government has not specified maintenance of the cost records under sub-section (1) of   section 148 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 for the products manufactured by it and/or services provided by it. 

(vii) (a) The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including Goods 
and service tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of 
excise, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it.

According to the information and explanations provided to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and 
Service Tax, Provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, 
value added tax, cess and other statutory dues were in arrears, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the 
date they became payable.

(Amount ̀  in lacs)

st

(Amount ̀  in lacs)

(Amount ̀  in lacs)

st

(Amount ̀  in lacs)

st



(b) According to information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of GST, PF, ESI, income tax, Sales Tax,service 
tax,value added tax, custom duty, excise duty and cess or other statutory dues, which have not been deposited on account 
of any dispute. 

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions as income, previously unrecorded as income in 
the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

(ix) (a)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to 
any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Companyhas not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not taken any term loans during the year.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on overall examination of the balance sheet of the 
Company, we report that funds raised on short term basis have not been used for long term purposes by the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on overall examination of the financial statements of the 
Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the 
obligation of its subsidiaries or associates as defined under the Companies Act, 2013 as the company does not have any 
subsidiary or associate. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) of the order is not applicable.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, the Company has no 
subsidiaries or associate companies as defined under the Companies Act, 213.  Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(f) of the order is 
not applicable.

(x) (a)  The Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments). 
Accordingly, clause 3(x)((a) of the order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Companyhas not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures 
during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the order is not applicable.

(xi) (a)  Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the information and explanations 
given to us,we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during course of the 
audit.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by the auditors in form ADT-4 
as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the company during the 
year.

(xii) In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable 
to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(xiii) According to information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, 
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and the details 
have been disclosed in the standalone Financial Statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) (a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion, the Company has an 
internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period under audit.

(xv)  According to information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, the 
company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them. Hence provisions of 
section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.Accordingly, 
clause 3(xvi)(a) of the order is not applicable.

(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities. Accordingly clause 3(xvi)(b) 
of the order is not applicable.

(c)  The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. 
Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c)  of the order is not applicable.

(d) According to information and explanations provided to us during the course of our audit, the group does not have any 
CIC. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(d) of the order is not applicable.
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(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current year. The Company incurred of Rs. 4,09,15,447/-  in the 
immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(xviii) of the order is not 
applicable.

(xix) According to information and explanations given to us and on basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of 
realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, 
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting 
the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on 
the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when 
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We however state that this is not an assurance as to 
the future viability of the Company. We further state that our report is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report 
and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the 
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) (a) According to information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, the 
provisions of section 135 are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is 
not applicable for the year.

(b) According to information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, the 
provisions of section 135 are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(b) of the Order is 
not applicable for the year.

For Avinash Agrawal & Co.
Chartered Accountants                                                                  
(FR No. 022666C) 

   

CA Avinash Agrawal)                                                             
(Membership No. 410875) 
Proprietor
UDIN: 23410875BGXUAX8709

Place: Indore
Date: 26/05/2023
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Financial Statement 
For and on behalf of Board of Director As per our report of even date attached 

For Avinash Agrawal & Co 
 Ritesh Sinvhal Sunil Gangrade Chartered Accountant 
 Director Whole-Time Director FRN :022666C 
 DIN:07969340 DIN:00169221 

 Pinkesh Gupta Ankit Joshi 
 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary (CA Avinash Agrawal) 

Proprietor 
 Place: Indore M.N.: 410875 
 Date: 26/05/2023 UDIN: 23410875BGXUAX8709

SARTHAK GLOBAL LIMITED
CIN - L99999MH1985PLC136835

(Amount ` in lacs)

Particulars Note No. As at As at
st31  March, 2023  31  March, 2022

STBALANCE SHEET AS AT 31  MARCH, 2023

st

I. ASSETS
(1) NON-CURRENT ASSETS

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3  2.92  6.49 
(b) Financial Assets :

(i) Investments 4  20.28  24.10 
(ii) Loans 5  50.68  446.70 

(c) Deferred Tax Assets 16  5.07  (0.14)

78.94  477.15 

(2) CURRENT ASSETS
(a) Inventories 6  31.79  28.10 
(b) Financial Assets :

(i) Trade Receivables 7  206.69  300.04 
(ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 8  33.91  22.55 
(iii) Bank Balances(other than (ii)above)  -    -   
(iii) Loans 9  1,759.82  1,702.19 
(iv) Other financial assets 10  111.51  1.10 

(c) Current Tax Assets (Net) 11  25.09  15.94 
(d) Other Current Assets 12  32.77  146.83 

 2,201.58  2,216.75 

TOTAL ASSETS 2,280.52  2,693.90 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY

(a) Equity Share Capital 13  300.00  300.00 
(b) Other Equity 14  (135.70)  (141.33)

 164.30  158.67 
LIABILITIES
(1) NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15  1,488.45  918.08 
(ii) Lease Liability  -    -   
(A) total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises;and
(B) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises

 1,488.45  918.08 
(2) CURRENT LIABILITIES

(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 17  409.38  90.42 
(ii)Lease Liability  -    -   
(iii) Trade Payables
(A) Total outstanding dues of creditors micro and 
small enterprises; and  -    -   
(B) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than
micro and small enterprises 18  206.21  1,518.43 
(iv) Other Financial Liabilities 19  2.40  3.81 

(b) Other Current Liabilities 20  9.78  4.49 

 627.77  1,617.15 

                    TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  2,280.52  2,693.90 
Basis of Preparation, Measurement and 
Significant Accounting Policies. 1 and 2
Contingent Liabilities and Commitments. 28
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SARTHAK GLOBAL LIMITED
CIN - L99999MH1985PLC136835

STSTATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH, 2023
(Amount ` in lacs)

Particulars Note No. For the year ended For the year ended
st st31  March, 2023  31  March, 2022

I. INCOME
a. Revenue From Operations 21  291.33  480.93 
b. Other Income 22  112.65  74.03 

Total Income  403.98  554.96 

II. EXPENSES:
Cost of materials consumed  -    -   
Purchase of stock in trade 23  220.38  318.62 
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock in trade
& work in progress 24  (3.69)  102.37 
Employee benefit expense 25  34.78  33.51 
Finance costs 26  90.00  58.75 
Depreciation and amortization expenses 3  4.29  4.11 
Other expenses 27  55.60  450.86 

Total Expenses 401.36  968.23 

III. Profit/ (Loss) before tax (I-II)  2.62  (413.27)

IV. Tax expense 29
 (1) Current tax  (2.20)
 (2) Deferred tax Credit / ( Charge )  5.21  (0.06)

Total Tax  3.01  (0.06)

V. Profit/ (Loss) for the year from continuing operations(III-IV)  5.63  (413.21)

VI. Other comprehensive income
A (i) Items that will not be re-classified to profit or loss  -    -   
       Re-measurments of the net defined benefit plans
   (ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be re-classified to profit or loss
      Re-measurments of the net defined benefit plans
B (i) Items that will be re-classified to profit or loss  -    -   
   (ii) Income tax relating to items that will be re-classified to profit or loss  -   
Total Other Comprehensive Income  -    -   
Total Comprehensive Income for the period  -    -   
(Comprising Profit (Loss) and Other Comprehensive Income for the period)

VII. Earnings per equity share (for continuing operation):
(1)  Basic (in Rs.)  0.19  (13.77)
(2)  Diluted (in Rs.)  0.19  (13.77)

 Basis of Preparation, Measurement and Significant 
Accounting Policies. 1 and 2

 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments. 28

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Financial Statement
For and on behalf of Board of Directors

 As per our report of even date attached 
 For Avinash Agrawal & Co 
 Chartered Accountant 
 FRN :022666C 

 Ritesh Sinvhal Sunil Gangrade 
 Director Whole-Time Director 
 DIN:07969340 DIN:00169221 

 (CA Avinash Agrawal) 
 Proprietor 

 Pinkesh Gupta Ankit Joshi  M.N.: 410875 
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary  UDIN: 23410875BGXUAX8709 

 Place: Indore 
 Date: 26/05/2023   



A. Cash flow from Operating activities
 Net Profit Before Tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss  2.62  (413.27)
 Adjusted for: 
 Depreciation and amortisation expenses  4.29  4.11 
 Interest Income  (110.61)  (73.96)
 Finance costs (Interest on lease liabilities)  -   
 Dividend Received  (0.03)  (0.07)
 Finance costs  90.00  -   
 Effect of Fair valuation of investments  3.81  -   

 Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes (9.92)  (483.19)
 Adjusted for: 
 Decrease / (increase) in inventories -3.69  102.37 
 Decrease(increase) in other financial assets (non-current) 0.00 0.00
 Decrease(increase) in other non-current assets 0.00 0.00
 Decrease(increase) in trade receivables  93.36  1,590.54 
 Decrease(increase) in other financial assets (current)  (110.41) 0.00
 Decrease(increase) in other current assets  114.06  (15.22)
 Decrease(increase) in long term loans and advances  396.03  (379.16)
 Decrease(increase) in short term loans and advances  (57.63)  (1,702.19)
 Decrease(increase) in current tax assets  (9.16)  4.38 

 Non- current / Current financial and other assets  422.56  (399.29)

 Increase(decrease) in trade payable  (1,312.23)  1,288.65 
 Increase(decrease) in other financial liabilities (current)  (1.41) 0.00
 Increase(decrease) in other current liabilites  5.29  (3.00)
 Increase/ (Decrease) in Current Tax Liabilities 0.00  (1.66)
 Increase/ (Decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities 0.00  0.44 
 Increase(decrease) in Deferred Tax Liability 0.00  0.06 

 Non- current / Current financial and other liabilities  (1,308.34)  1,284.49 

 Cash generated from operations  (895.70)  402.01 
 Taxes Paid (Net)  (2.20)  (0.06)

 Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities  (897.90)  401.95 
 B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Purchase of tangible and intangible assets  (0.72)  (1.59)
Proceeds from disposal of tangible and intangible assets  -    4.50 
 Interest Income  110.61  73.96 
 Dividend Income from Others  0.03  0.07 

 Net Cash flow (Used in) Investing Activities  109.93  76.94 
 C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

 Proceeds /(Repayment) of  Long Term Borrowings  570.36  (483.48)
 Share Capital  -   
 Proceeds/(Repayment) of  Short Term Borrowings  318.97  2.99 
 Interest Paid  (90.00)  -   

 Net Cash flow from/(Used in) Financing Activities  799.33  (480.49)

 D.  Net (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents  11.36  (1.59)
 Opening Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents  22.55  24.14 
 Closing Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents*  33.91  22.55 

* (Refer Note 8) 

 Note: The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method’ as set out in Ind AS 7, ‘Statement of Cash Flows’. 
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SARTHAK GLOBAL LIMITED
CIN - L99999MH1985PLC136835

ST CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH, 2023
(Amount ` in lacs)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
st st31  March, 2023  31  March, 2022

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Financial Statement
For and on behalf of Board of Directors

As per our report of even date attached 
 Ritesh Sinvhal Sunil Gangrade
 Director Whole-Time Director Chartered Accountant 
 DIN:07969340 DIN:00169221 FRN :022666C 

 Pinkesh Gupta Ankit Joshi (CA Avinash Agrawal) 
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary Proprietor 

M.N.: 410875 
 Place: Indore UDIN: 23410875BGXUAX8709 
 Date: 26/05/2023  

For Avinash Agrawal & Co 
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH, 2023.

1  Corporate  information

Sarthak  Global  Limited  (The  "Company"),  domiciled  in India and incorporated on  19  April, 1985 under the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 1956 and having its registered office at 609, Floor-6, West Wing, Tulsiani Chambers, Nariman Point, Mumbai, 
Maharashtra - 400021 India. The company is the trader of various commodities, investments  and  trading  in  securities  with  rendering 
services  as  share  transfer  agent  during  the  year.

2 Basis  of  preparation,  presentation  and  significant  accounting  policies

2.1 Statement  of  Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance  with  Indian  Accounting  Standards  (Ind  AS)  as  per  Companies  
(Indian  Accounting  Standards)  Rules,  2015  notified  under section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the ‘Act’) and other relevant 
provisions  of  the A ct.

The  Board  of  Directors  approved  the  financial  statements  for  the  year  ended  31 March, 2023  and  authorised  for  issue  on  26
May,  2023.

2.2 Basis  of  preparation  and  presentation

a.  Basis  of  Preparation 

The  Company  maintains  its  accounts  on  accrual  basis  following  historical  cost  convention,  except  for  certain  assets  and 
liabilities  that  are  measured  at  fair  value,  recoverable  amount  or  net  realisable value in accordance with Indian  Accounting 
Standards.T he  Financial  Statements  of  the  Company  have  been  prepared  to  comply  with  the  Indian A ccounting  standards  (‘Ind 
AS’),  including  the  rules  notified  under  the  relevant  provisions  of  the  Companies A ct,  2013.

b.  Basis  of  Presentation

i. The  Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and Statement of Changes in Equity are prepared and presented in the format 
prescribed  in  the  Schedule  III  to  the  Companies  Act,  2013  (“the Act”). The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared and 
presented  as  per  the  requirements  of  Ind  AS  7 “Statement  of  Cash  Flows”  by  use  of  indirect  method.  The  disclosure  
requirements  with  respect  to  items  in  the  Balance  Sheet  and  Statement  of  Profit  and  Loss,  as  prescribed  in  the  Schedule  III  to 
the  Act,  are  presented  by  way  of  notes  forming  part  of  the  financial  statements  along  with  the  other  notes  required  to  be 
disclosed  under  the  notified A ccounting  Standards. 

ii.  The  Company’s  Financial  Statements  are  presented  in  Indian  Rupees  (INR),  which  is  also  its  functional  currency  and  all  
values  are  rounded  to  the  nearest  lakhs,  except  when  otherwise  indicated,  as  permitted  by  Schedule  III  to  the  Companies A ct,  
2013.

Transactions  and  balances  with  values  below  the  rounding  off  norm  adopted  by  the  Company  have  been  reflected  as  “0”  in  the 
relevant  notes  to  these  financial  statements.

iii.  Current  and  Non-Current  Classification

The  Company  presents  assets  and  liabilities  in  the  Balance  Sheet  based  on  Current  /  Non-Current  classification.

An  asset  is  treated  as  Current  when  it  is  –
-  Expected  to  be  realised  or  intended  to  be  sold  or  consumed  in  normal  operating  cycle;
-  Held  primarily  for  the  purpose  of  trading;  
-  Expected  to  be  realised  within  twelve  months  after  the  reporting  period,  or
-  Cash  or  cash  equivalent  unless  restricted  from  being  exchanged  or  used  to  settle  a  liability  for  at  least  twelve  months  after  the 
reporting  period.

 A ll  other  assets  are  classified  as  non-current. 

A  liability  is  current  when: -
-  It  is  expected  to  be  settled  in  normal  operating  cycle;
-  It  is  held  primarily  for  the  purpose  of  trading; 
-  It  is  due  to  be  settled  within  twelve  months  after  the  reporting  period,  or 
- T here  is  no  unconditional  right  to  defer  the  settlement  of  the  liability  for  at  least  twelve  months  after  the  reporting  period. 

The  Company  classifies  all  other  liabilities  as  non-current.

2.3 Key A ccounting  Estimates  and  Judgements

The  preparation  of  these  standalone  financial  statements  in  conformity  with  the  recognition  and  measurement  principles  of  Ind  
AS  requires  the  management  of  the  company  to  make  estimates  and  assumptions  that  affect  the  reported  balances  of  assets  
and  liabilities,  disclosures  of  contingent  liabilities  as  at  t he  date  of  the  financial  statements  and  the  reported  amounts  of  income  
and  expense  for  the  periods  presented. 

Estimates  and  underlying  assumptions  are  reviewed  on  an  ongoing  basis.  Revisions  to  accounting  estimates  are  recognised  in  
the  period  in  which  the  estimates  are  revised  and  future  periods  are  affected.  The  Company  uses  the  following  critical  
accounting  estimates  in  preparation  of  its  financial  statements. 

Key  sources  of  estimation  of  uncertainty  at  the  reporting  date  of  financial  statements,  which  may  cause  a  material  adjustment  
to  the  carrying  amounts  of  assets  and  liabilities  within  the  next  financial  year,  are  in  respect  of  useful  lives  and  carrying  
amounts  of  property,  plant  and  equipment,  fair  value  measurements  of  financial  instruments,  revenue  recognition  and  
employee  benefits,  these  are  discussed  below.

ST

th

st th  
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Outcomes  within  the  next  financial  year  that  are  different  from  the  assumption  could  require  a  material  adjustment  to  the  
carrying  amount  of  the  asset  or  liability.

a)  Property,  Plant  and  Equipment

Judgement  is  required  in  applying  the  recognition  criteria  as  to  what  constitutes  an  item  of  property,  plant  and  equipment.  The 
Company  uses  judgement  to  assess  the  degree  of  certainty  attached  to  the  flow  of  future  economic  benefits  that  are  attributable  to  
the  use  of  the  asset  on  the  basis  of  the  evidence  available  at  the  time  of  initial  recognition.  The  residual  values,  useful  lives  and 
methods  of  depreciation  of  Property,  Plant  and  Equipment  are  reviewed  at  each  financial  year  end  and  adjusted  prospectively,  if 
appropriate.  

The  Company  reviews  its  carrying  value  of  Property,  plant  and  equipment  carried  at  cost  (net  of  impairment,  if  any)  annually,  when 
there  is  indication  for impairment. If  the  recoverable  amount  is  less  than  its  carrying  amount,  the  impairment  loss  is  accounted  for  in 
the  statement  of  profit  and  loss.  It  involves,  among  other  techniques,  estimations  in  respect  of  expected  future  cash  flows  and 
discount  rates  to  arrive  at  present  value  of  expected  cash  flows.

The carrying amount of Property, plant and Equipment is given at Note No. 3

b)  Financial Instruments

When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted price in 
active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow model. The inputs to these 
models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in 
establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in 
assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

The carrying value of fair value of financial instruments is given at note no. 4 to 5, 7 to 10, 15, 17 to 19.

c)  Revenue Recognition

The Company derives its revenue primarily from sale of merchandise and share transfer agency services. 

The Company’s contract with customers could include promises to transfer multiple products and services to a customer. The Company 
assesses the products / services promised in a contract and identifies distinct performance obligations in the contract. Identification of 
distinct performance obligation involves judgement to determine the deliverables and the ability of the customer to benefit independently 
from such deliverables.

Judgment is also required to determine the transaction price for the contract and to ascribe the transaction price to each distinct 
performance obligation. The transaction price could be either a fixed amount of customer consideration or variable consideration with 
elements such as volume discounts, price concessions and incentives. The transaction price is also adjusted for the effects of the time 
value of money if the contract includes a significant financing component.

The estimated amount of variable consideration is adjusted in the transaction price only to the extent that it is highly probable that a 
significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur and is reassessed at the end of each reporting period. 
The Company allocates the elements of variable considerations to all the performance obligations of the contract unless there is 
observable evidence that they pertain to one or more distinct performance obligations.

The Company exercises judgment in determining whether the performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time or over a period of 
time. The Company considers indicators such as how customer consumes benefits as services are rendered or who controls the asset as 
it is being created or existence of enforceable right to payment for performance to date and alternate use of such product or service, 
transfer of significant risks and rewards to the customer, acceptance of delivery by the customer, etc.

The Company uses judgement to estimate the value of the goods or services to the customer transferred to date relative to the remaining 
goods or services promised under contract which is used to determine the degree of completion of the performance obligation.

The amount of revenue recognised is given in Note No. 21.

2.4  Recent accounting developments

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), vide notification dated March 31, 2023, has made some amendments to Ind AS. These amendments 
inter alia, include:

( i) Amendments to Ind AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements where the companies are now required to disclose material accounting 
policies rather than their significant accounting policies.

(ii) Amendments to Ind AS 8, Accounting policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors where the definition of ‘change in account 
estimate’ has been replaced by revised definition of ‘accounting estimate’.

(iii) Amendments Ind AS 12, Income Taxes where the scope of Initial Recognition Exemption (IRE) has been narrowed down.

Based on preliminary assessment, the Company does not have expect these amendments to have any significant impact  on its 
standalone financial statements.

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

a)  Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost after deducting trade discount and rebates less accumulated depreciation and 
impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes purchase price, borrowing cost, non-refundable purchase taxes, any cost directly 
attributable to bringing the assets to its working condition for its intended use, net charges on foreign exchange contracts and 
adjustments arising from exchange rate variations attributable to the assets. 
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Property, Plant and Equipment which are significant to the total cost of that item of Property, Plant and Equipment and having different 
useful life are accounted separately. 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable 
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost can be measured reliably.

The Company has opted cost model as its accounting policy for measurement after recognition.

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment is provided using Straight Line Method taking life of the assets as given in the Schedule -II 
of Companies Act, 2013 on 95% of value of assets.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment are reviewed at each financial year end 
and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate .

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of a Property, Plant and Equipment are measured as the difference between the net disposal 
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised .

Property, plant and equipment are evaluated for recoverability whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be 
recoverable. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount (i.e. higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is 
determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other 
assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) 
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

b)  Intangible Assets

Intangible assets purchased are measured at cost as of the date of acquisition, as applicable, less accumulated amortisation and 
accumulated impairment, if any.

The Company has opted cost model as its accounting policy for measurement after recognition.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an Intangible Asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and 
the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

The Company’s intangible assets comprises assets with finite useful life which are amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of 
their expected useful life.

Intangible assets with finite life are evaluated for recoverability whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be 
recoverable. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount (i.e. higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is 
determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other 
assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) 
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

c)  Inventories

Inventories consist of shares held in other entities. Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net releasable value. The cost of 
inventories shall comprise all costs of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present, 
location and condition. The costs of inventories are assigned using the first in, first out (FIFO) formula. When inventories are sold, the 
carrying amount of those inventories shall be recognised as an expense in the period in which the related revenue is recognised.

d)  Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash on hand, cash at banks, short-term deposits and short-term, highly liquid investments that 
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

e) Financial Instruments

Financial Assets

Initial Recognition and Measurement

The company recognises a financial asset when it becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All Financial Assets are 
initially recognised at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of Financial Assets, which are 
not at Fair Value through Profit or Loss, are adjusted to the fair value on initial recognition.

Where the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition differs from the transaction price an entity account for the difference as 
follows:

• As a gain or loss, if that fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability, is deferred in other 
cases. The deferred difference is recognised as a gain or loss only to the extent it arises from a change in factor (including time) that 
market participants would take into account when pricing the asset or liability.

Subsequent Measurement

Financial Assets measured at Amortised Cost 

A Financial Asset is measured at Amortised Cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect 
contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the Financial Asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that represent solely 
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.



Financial Assets measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income 

A Financial Asset is measured a FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual 
cash flows and selling Financial Assets and the contractual terms of the Financial Asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that 
represents solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial Assets measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss 

A Financial Asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL. 

Impairment of Financial Assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company uses ‘Expected Credit Loss’ (ECL) model, for evaluating impairment of Financial Assets 
other than those measured at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss (FVTPL).

Expected Credit Losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to:

• The 12-months expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from those default events on the financial instrument that are 
possible within 12 months after the reporting date); or

• Full lifetime expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the life of the financial 
instrument).

For Trade Receivables the Company applies ‘simplified approach’ which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial 
recognition of the receivables. The Company uses historical default rates to determine impairment loss on the portfolio of trade 
receivables. At every reporting date these historical default rates are reviewed and changes in the forward-looking estimates are 
analysed.

For other assets, the Company uses 12 month ECL to provide for impairment loss where there is no significant increase in credit risk. If 
there is significant increase in credit risk full lifetime ECL is used.

Reclassification of Financial Assets 

Financial assets are reclassified subsequent to their recognition, if the Company changes its business model for managing those 
financial assets. Changes in business model are made and applied prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of 
immediately next reporting period following the changes in business model in accordance with principles laid down under Ind AS 109 – 
Financial Instruments.

Financial Liabilities

Initial Recognition and Measurement

The company recognises a financial liability when it becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All Financial Liabilities 
are recognised at fair value and in case of financial liabilities classified as ‘subsequently measured at amortised cost’ are shown net of 
directly attributable cost.

Where the fair value of the financial liability at initial recognition differs from the transaction price an entity account for the difference as 
follows:

• As a gain or loss, if that fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability,

•  Is deferred in other cases. The deferred difference is recognised as a gain or loss only to the extent it arises from a change in factor 
(including time) that market participants would take into account when pricing the asset or liability.

Subsequent Measurement

Financial Liabilities which are classified as ‘subsequently measured at amortised cost’ are carried at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method.

f)  Provisions 

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that 
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the 
amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that 
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of 
time is recognised as a finance cost.

g)  Contingent Liabilities

Disclosure of contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be 
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company 
or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic 
benefits will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of amount cannot be made.

h)  Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured at the amount of consideration which the Company expects to be entitled to in exchange for transferring distinct 
goods or services to a customer as specified in the contract, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties (for example taxes and 
duties collected on behalf of the government). Consideration is generally due upon satisfaction of performance obligations and a 
receivable is recognised when it becomes unconditional. 

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount 
that reflects the consideration entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
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Sale of Goods

Generally, control is transferred upon shipment of goods to the customer or when the goods is made available to the customer, provided 
transfer of title to the customer occurs and the Company has not retained any significant risks of ownership or future obligations with 
respect to the goods shipped.

Share transfer agency services

Revenue from rendering of other services is recognised over time by measuring the progress towards complete satisfaction of 
performance obligations by using output method at the reporting period.

Interest Income

Interest Income from a Financial Assets is recognised using effective interest rate method.

i)  Contract Balances

Trade Receivables

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional.

Contract Liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration (or an 
amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to 
the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities 
are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

j)  Employee Benefits Expense

Short-Term Employee Benefits

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees are 
recognised as an expense during the period when the employees render the services.

k) Impairment of Non- Financial Assets - Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that any Property, Plant and Equipment and 
Intangible Assets or group of Assets, called Cash Generating Units (CGU) may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable 
amount of an asset or CGU is estimated to determine the extent of impairment, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable 
amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) 
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

l)  Income Taxes

Income taxes 

Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and the net change in the deferred tax asset or liability during the year. Current and 
deferred taxes are recognised in statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive 
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current taxes

Current tax liabilities and assets are measured at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the Income Tax authorities, based 
on tax rates and laws that are enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred taxes

Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet approach. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for deductible and 
taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible 
temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that 
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using substantively enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in 
which the temporary differences are expected to be received or settled.

m)  Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 
during the year adjusted for bonus element in equity share.

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in determination of basic earnings per share to take into account the conversion of all 
dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as at the beginning of the period unless issued at a 
later date.
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Note 4. Investments - Non Current
(Amount ` in lacs)

st st  Particulars As at 31 As at 31
March, 2023 March, 2022

In Entities Other Than Subsidiaries, Associate, Joint Ventures

In Quoted Instruments, fully paid up
  In equity instruments 19.40  21.92 
  Investment in mutual funds 0.18  1.46 

  In Unquoted Instruments, fully paid up
  In equity instruments 0.71  0.71 

TOTAL 20.28  24.10 

                                                                                             TOTAL 20.28  24.10 

(Refer note no. 2.5(e) for accounting policy on Investments and note no. 2.3 (b) for other information)
 a) Information about investments in other than subsidiaries, associates, joint ventures- (Quoted)

SARTHAK GLOBAL LIMITED
stNOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH, 2023

i) In equity Instruments                      (Amount ` in lacs)
st stNo. of shares       Other than Subsidiaries, associates ,  Face value per As at 31  As at 31

 joint ventures  share(in Rs.)   March, 2023  March, 2022 

23,000 Bramanand Himgiri Ltd. 5.00 0.94 1.15 

808 IDBI Bank Ltd. 10.00 0.36  0.37 

167,150 National Steel & Agro Industries Ltd. 10.00 5.43  50.85 

39,467 Sarthak Industries Ltd. 10.00 12.66 2.98291 

 35.00  19.40  55.35 

 Less : provision made in FY 21-22  (33.43)

 Total 19.40  21.92 

ii)  In Mutual Fund                      (Amount ` in lacs) 
st stNo. of shares       Other than Subsidiaries, associates ,  Face value per As at 31  As at 31

 joint ventures  share(in Rs.)   March, 2023  March, 2022

0.00 UTI Master Gain 10.00  -.00 0.38 

0.00 UTI Master Share 10.00  -.00 1.08 

120.87 UTI Flexi cap fund 10.00 0.18 0

 Total  -    0.18  1.46 

iii)  In equity Instruments  (Unquoted)                       (Amount ` in lacs) 
st stNo. of shares       Other than Subsidiaries, associates ,  Face value per As at 31  As at 31

 joint ventures  share(in Rs.)   March, 2023  March, 2022

6,000 Keval (India) Ltd. 10.00 0.60  0.60 

50 Neha Securities Pvt. Ltd.  100.00 0.05 0.05 

160 Shahra Securities Pvt. Ltd.  100.00 0.06 0.06 

 Total  -  0.711  0.711 



Annual Report 2022-23

Page 57

SARTHAK GLOBAL LIMITED

SARTHAKGLOBAL LIMITED
stNOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH, 2023

 c) Other Information 
(Amount ` in lacs) 

st st Other Information  As at 31  As at 31
March, 2023 March, 2022 

 Aggregate amount of quoted investment 19.57  56.81 
 Aggregate amount of unquoted investment  0.71  0.71 
 Aggregate market value of quoted investments  19.57  30.36 
 Aggergate amount of impairment in value of investment  -    -   

Note 5 . Loans                      (Amount ` in lacs) 

st st  Particulars  As at 31  As at 31
March, 2023 March, 2022 

 (a)Loans to related parties 
Unsecured Considered Good 50.68 446.70

                                                                                                         Total 50.68 446.70

 (Refer note no 2.5 (e) for accounting policy, Note No. 2.3 (b) and Note No. 33 for other information) 

No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the 
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”) with the understanding, whether recorded in writing 
or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall lend or invest in party identified by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries). The Company 
has not received any fund from any party(s) (Funding Party) with the understanding that the Company shall whether, directly or indirectly lend or 
invest in other persons or entities identified by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like 
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

It is declared that the relevant provisions of the Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 (42 of 1999) and Companies Act has been complied with 
for such transactions and the transactions are not violative of the Prevention of Money-Laundering act, 2002 (15 of 2003)

Note 6. Inventories                      (Amount ` in lacs) 

st st  Particulars  As at 31    As at 31  
March, 2023 March, 2022 

Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value  
Stock-in-Trade 31.79 28.10 

                                                                                                         Total 31.79  28.10 

(Refer Note No. 2.5(c) for accounting policy on Inventories)

Other Information                     (Amount ` in lacs) 

st st  Particulars  As at 31    As at 31  
March, 2023 March, 2022 

Details of Inventory
Stock in Trade 31.79  28.10 

                                                                                                         Total 31.79  28.10 

Note 7. Trade Receivables                      (Amount ` in lacs) 

st st  Particulars  As at 31   As at 31
March, 2023 March, 2022 

Trade receivables
Unsecured- considered good 206.69 300.04
Having significant increase in credit risk 3.93  -   
Less : Loss Allowance (3.93)  -   

                                                                                                            Total 206.69 300.04

(Refer Note No. 2.5 (e) for accounting policy, Note No. 2.3 (b) and Note No. 33 for other information)

Other Information                      (Amount ` in lacs) 

st st  Particulars  As at 31   As at 31
March, 2023 March, 2022 

Firm in which Director is member and Partner 3.93 -

                                                                                                            Total 3.93 -
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SARTHAK GLOBAL LIMITED
stNOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH, 2023

 Trade Receivables Ageing Schedule 31.03.2023 

  S. No. Trade Receivables due (Outstanding for Undisputed Undisputed Total
following perionds from due  Trade Trade 

date of payment) receivables - receivables - 
Considered good  which have 

significant 
increase in 
credit risk

1. Unbilled  -    -    -   
2. Not Due  -    -    -   
3. Less than 6 months 206.64  -   206.64
4. 6 months - 1 Year 0.04  -   0.04
5. 1-2 Years  -    -    -   
6. 2-3 Years  -   3.93 3.93
7. More than 3 Years  -    -    -   

 Total 206.69 3.93 210.62

Trade Receivables Ageing Schedule 31.03.2022                                                   (Amount ` in lacs) 

  S. No. Trade Receivables due (Outstanding for Undisputed Undisputed Total
following perionds from due  Trade Trade 

date of payment) receivables - receivables - 
Considered good  which have 

significant 
increase in 
credit risk

1. Unbilled  -    -    -   
2. Not Due  -    -    -   
3. Less than 6 months 129.21  -   129.21
4. 6 months - 1 Year 166.91  -   166.91
5. 1-2 Years 3.93  -   3.93
6. 2-3 Years  -    -    -   
7. More than 3 Years  -    -    -   

 Total 300.04  -   300.04

Note 8. Cash And Cash Equivalent           (Amount ` in lacs) 

st stAs at 31    As at 31  
March, 2023 March, 2022 

(a)Balance with banks 32.43 22.01
(b)Cash in hand  1.48  0.54 

                                                                                                                 Total 33.91 22.55

(Refer Note 2.5 (d) for accounting policy & Note No. 33 for other information)

Note 9. Loans            (Rupees in Lakhs) 
st st  Particulars As at 31    As at 31  

March, 2023 March, 2022 

Loans to entities other than related parties
unsecured, considered good 1759.82 1702.19

                                                                                                                 Total 1759.82 1702.19

Other Information

 i. Refer Note No. 2.5 (e) for accounting policy, Note No. 2.3 (b) and Note No. 33 for other information.

                                   (Amount ` in lacs) 
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SARTHAK GLOBAL LIMITED
stNOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH, 2023

 ii No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other 
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”) with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall lend or 
invest in party identified by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries). The Company has not received any fund from any party(s) (Funding Party) with the 
understanding that the Company shall whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate 
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

It is declared that the relevant provisions of the Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 (42 of 1999) and Companies Act has been complied with for such transactions 
and the transactions are not violative of the Prevention of Money-Laundering act, 2002 (15 of 2003).

iii The Company has undertaken following transactions wherein the funds were received and those funds were transferred to other persons. However, there was no 
understanding with the lender to lend or invest in other person or entity or to provide any guarantee, security or the like-

            (Amount ` in lacs) 

                                                           Details of funds received Details of Funds given

Date Date
mm/dd/yyyy Name of funding party Amount dd/mm/yyyy Amount Entity to whom funds were given

4/2/2022 General Foods and Ingredients Pvt.Ltd. 2.00 4/4/2022 2.00 Rashika Agri Tech indore

4/4/2022 General Foods and Ingredients Pvt.Ltd. 3.00 4/5/2022 3.00 APL International Pvt ltd 

4/4/2022 Saharsh Business Pvt Ltd 80.00 4/5/2022 80.00 APL International Pvt ltd 

4/6/2022 General Foods and Ingredients Pvt.Ltd. 45.00 4/7/2022 45.00 Saharsh Business Pvt Ltd

4/28/2022 General Foods and Ingredients Pvt.Ltd. 9.67 4/29/2022 9.67 Saharsh Business Pvt Ltd

4/28/2022 General Foods and Ingredients Pvt.Ltd. 4.18 4/29/2022 4.18 APL International Pvt ltd 

4/28/2022 General Foods and Ingredients Pvt.Ltd. 2.00 4/30/2022 2.00 APL International Pvt ltd 

4/30/2022 Saharsh Business Pvt Ltd 5.50 5/1/2022 5.50 APL International Pvt ltd 

5/4/2022 Saharsh Business Pvt Ltd 6.00 5/4/2022 6.00 Deepak Mishra

5/4/2022 Saharsh Business Pvt Ltd 1.00 5/4/2022 1.00 APL International Pvt ltd 

5/4/2022 Saharsh Business Pvt Ltd 3.00 5/4/2022 3.00 APL International Pvt ltd 

5/18/2022 Deepak Mishra 2.00 5/24/2022 2.00 General Foods and Ingredients Pvt.Ltd.

5/21/2022 Deepak Mishra 0.50 5/24/2022 0.50 General Foods and Ingredients Pvt.Ltd.

5/24/2022 Saharsh Business Pvt Ltd 15.00 5/24/2022 15.00 General Foods and Ingredients Pvt.Ltd.

5/26/2022 Bharat Foods Co. Op Ltd 230.00 5/26/2022 230.00 Saharsh Business Pvt Ltd

5/26/2022 Saharsh Business Pvt Ltd 3.00 5/26/2022 3.00 Shree Veeari Trading Company

5/27/2022 Bharat Foods Co. Op Ltd 150.00 5/27/2022 150.00 Saharsh Business Pvt Ltd

5/27/2022 Bharat Foods Co. Op Ltd 5.00 5/30/2022 5.00 APL International Pvt ltd 

6/2/2022 Arandi Investment Pvt Ltd 50.00 6/2/2022 50.00 Teej Impex Pvt Ltd

5/27/2022 Bharat Foods Co. Op Ltd 10.00 6/3/2022 10.00 General Foods and Ingredients Pvt.Ltd.

5/27/2022 Bharat Foods Co. Op Ltd 5.98 6/6/2022 5.98 Patan Agro Product Pvt Ltd

6/7/2022 Arandi Investment Pvt Ltd 58.00 6/7/2022 58.00 Teej Impex Pvt Ltd

6/16/2022 Anand Mangal Investment and Finance Pvt Ltd 20.32 6/16/2022 20.32 Visha l Warehousing Pvt Ltd

6/17/2022 Saharsh Business Pvt Ltd 100.00 6/17/2022 100.00 Shri Nitesh Shahra

6/23/2022 Shri Nitesh Shahra 25.00 6/23/2022 25.00 Saharsh Business Pvt Ltd

6/23/2022 Shri Nitesh Shahra 25.00 6/23/2022 25.00 Saharsh Business Pvt Ltd

6/24/2022 Saharsh Business Pvt Ltd 50.00 6/24/2022 50.00 General Foods and Ingredients Pvt.Ltd.

6/24/2022 Shri Nitesh Shahra 50.00 6/24/2022 50.00 General Foods and Ingredients Pvt.Ltd.

6/6/2022 APL International Pvt Ltd 18.00 6/30/2022 18.00 Kaytha Enterprises Pvt Ltd

6/30/2022 Bharat Foods Co. Op Ltd 200.00 6/30/2022 200.00 Kaytha Enterprises Pvt Ltd

6/30/2022 Saharsh Business Pvt Ltd 80.00 6/30/2022 80.00 Kaytha Enterprises Pvt Ltd

7/2/2022 Saharsh Business Pvt Ltd 165.00 7/2/2022 165.00 Bharat Foods Co. Op Ltd

7/7/2022 Saharsh Business Pvt Ltd 25.00 7/7/2022 25.00 Bharat Foods Co. Op Ltd

7/12/2022 Kaytha Enterprises Pvt Ltd 200.00 7/12/2022 200.00 Bharat Foods Co. Op Ltd

7/13/2022 Bharat Foods Co. Op Ltd 200.00 7/13/2022 200.00 General Foods and Ingredients Pvt.Ltd.

7/14/2022 Bharat Foods Co. Op Ltd 150.00 7/14/2022 150.00 General Foods and Ingredients Pvt.Ltd.

7/15/2022 Bharat Foods Co. Op Ltd 50.00 7/15/2022 50.00 General Foods and Ingredients Pvt.Ltd.

7/15/2022 Kaytha Enterprises Pvt Ltd 25.00 7/15/2022 25.00 Bharat Foods Co. Op Ltd

7/18/2022 Bharat Foods Co. Op Ltd 160.00 7/18/2022 160.00 General Foods and Ingredients Pvt.Ltd.

7/19/2022 Bharat Foods Co. Op Ltd 50.00 7/19/2022 50.00 General Foods and Ingredients Pvt.Ltd.

7/20/2022 Bharat Foods Co. Op Ltd 30.00 7/20/2022 30.00 General Foods and Ingredients Pvt.Ltd.

7/21/2022 Bharat Foods Co. Op Ltd 100.00 7/21/2022 100.00 General Foods and Ingredients Pvt.Ltd.
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                                                           Details of funds received Details of Funds given

Date Name of funding party Amount Date Amount Entity to whom funds were given
mm/dd/yyyy mm/dd/yyyy

7/22/2022 APL International Pvt Ltd 10.00 7/22/2022 10.00 Bharat Foods Co. Op Ltd

7/25/2022 Bharat Foods Co. Op Ltd 50.00 7/25/2022 50.00 General Foods and Ingredients Pvt.Ltd.

7/26/2022 Bharat Foods Co. Op Ltd 25.00 7/26/2022 25.00 General Foods and Ingredients Pvt.Ltd.

7/26/2022 General Foods and Ingredients Pvt.Ltd. 50.00 7/26/2022 50.00 Bharat Foods Co. Op Ltd

7/26/2022 General Foods and Ingredients Pvt.Ltd. 50.00 7/26/2022 50.00 Bharat Foods Co. Op Ltd

7/30/2022 Bharat Foods Co. Op Ltd 30.00 7/30/2022 30.00 General Foods and Ingredients Pvt.Ltd.

7/30/2022 General Foods and Ingredients Pvt.Ltd. 10.00 7/30/2022 10.00 APL International Pvt ltd 

7/30/2022 General Foods and Ingredients Pvt.Ltd. 1.50 7/30/2022 1.50 Mahadev Shahra & Sons

8/2/2022 General Foods and Ingredients Pvt.Ltd. 65.00 8/2/2022 65.00 Saharsh Business Pvt Ltd

8/2/2022 General Foods and Ingredients Pvt.Ltd. 100.00 8/2/2022 100.00 Saharsh Business Pvt Ltd

8/2/2022 General Foods and Ingredients Pvt.Ltd. 30.00 8/4/2022 30.00 Saharsh Business Pvt Ltd

8/2/2022 Kaytha Enterprises Pvt Ltd 25.00 8/4/2022 25.00 Saharsh Business Pvt Ltd

8/3/2022 Kaytha Enterprises Pvt Ltd 50.00 8/4/2022 50.00 Saharsh Business Pvt Ltd

8/6/2022 Bharat Foods Co. Op Ltd 40.00 8/6/2022 40.00 General Foods and Ingredients Pvt.Ltd.

8/12/2022 General Foods and Ingredients Pvt.Ltd. 100.00 8/16/2022 100.00 Bharat Foods Co. Op Ltd

8/12/2022 General Foods and Ingredients Pvt.Ltd. 75.00 8/16/2022 75.00 Bharat Foods Co. Op Ltd

8/18/2022 General Foods and Ingredients Pvt.Ltd. 1.00 8/18/2022 1.00 Mahadev Shahra & Sons

8/18/2022 General Foods and Ingredients Pvt.Ltd. 2.00 8/23/2022 2.00 APL International Pvt ltd 

8/22/2022 General Foods and Ingredients Pvt.Ltd. 31.00 8/22/2022 31.00 Bharat Foods Co. Op Ltd

8/24/2022 General Foods and Ingredients Pvt.Ltd. 100.00 8/24/2022 100.00 Bharat Foods Co. Op Ltd

8/31/2022 Saharsh Business Pvt Ltd 5.00 8/31/2022 5.00 APL International Pvt ltd 

9/2/2022 General Foods and Ingredients Pvt.Ltd. 50.00 9/5/2022 50.00 General Foods and Ingredients Pvt.Ltd.

9/2/2022 General Foods and Ingredients Pvt.Ltd. 50.00 9/5/2022 50.00 Shri Nitesh Shahra

9/6/2022 Bharat Foods Co. Op Ltd 49.50 9/6/2022 49.50 Shri Siddharth Koolwal

9/14/2022 Bharat Foods Co. Op Ltd 50.00 9/14/2022 50.00 General Foods and Ingredients Pvt.Ltd.

9/19/2022 BFCL Terminal Pvt Ltd 25.00 9/19/2022 25.00 General Foods and Ingredients Pvt.Ltd.

9/19/2022 BFCL Terminal Pvt Ltd 25.00 9/19/2022 25.00 General Foods and Ingredients Pvt.Ltd.

9/26/2022 BFCL Terminal Pvt Ltd 100.00 9/26/2022 100.00 Saharsh Business Pvt Ltd

9/27/2022 Saharsh Business Pvt Ltd 100.00 9/27/2022 100.00 Bharat Foods Co. Op Ltd

9/29/2022 BFCL Terminal Pvt Ltd 50.00 9/30/2022 50.00 Amona Industries Ltd

9/29/2022 BFCL Terminal Pvt Ltd 50.00 9/30/2022 50.00 Amona Industries Ltd

10/6/2022 Amona Industries Ltd 50.00 10/6/2022 50.00 Bharat Foods Co. Op Ltd

10/6/2022 Amona Industries Ltd 50.00 10/6/2022 50.00 Bharat Foods Co. Op Ltd

10/11/2022 General Foods and Ingredients Pvt.Ltd. 25.00 10/11/2022 25.00 Saharsh Business Pvt Ltd

10/15/2022 Shri Nitesh Shahra 10.00 10/15/2022 10.00 APL International Pvt ltd 

10/18/2022 General Foods and Ingredients Pvt.Ltd. 10.00 10/18/2022 10.00 Saharsh Business Pvt Ltd

10/19/2022 General Foods and Ingredients Pvt.Ltd. 20.00 10/19/2022 20.00 Saharsh Business Pvt Ltd

10/21/2022 Shri Siddharth Koolwal 20.00 11/7/2022 20.00 Saharsh Business Pvt Ltd

10/21/2022 Shri Siddharth Koolwal 5.00 11/10/2022 5.00 Saharsh Business Pvt Ltd

10/26/2022 General Foods and Ingredients Pvt.Ltd. 75.00 10/27/2022 75.00 Saharsh Business Pvt Ltd

11/9/2022 General Foods and Ingredients Pvt.Ltd. 15.00 11/9/2022 15.00 Saharsh Business Pvt Ltd

11/9/2022 General Foods and Ingredients Pvt.Ltd. 5.00 11/9/2022 5.00 Saharsh Business Pvt Ltd

11/17/2022 APL International Pvt Ltd 65.00 11/17/2022 65.00 Bharat Foods Co. Op Ltd

11/17/2022 Saharsh Business Pvt Ltd 75.00 11/17/2022 75.00 APL International Pvt ltd 

11/23/2022 General Foods and Ingredients Pvt.Ltd. 70.00 11/28/2022 70.00 APL International Pvt ltd 

11/28/2022 Saharsh Business Pvt Ltd 165.00 11/28/2022 165.00 APL International Pvt ltd 

11/28/2022 General Foods and Ingredients Pvt.Ltd. 10.00 11/28/2022 10.00 APL International Pvt ltd 

11/25/2022 General Foods and Ingredients Pvt.Ltd. 30.00 11/25/2022 30.00 Saharsh Business Pvt Ltd

12/1/2022 APL International Pvt Ltd 100.00 12/1/2022 100.00 Bharat Foods Co. Op Ltd

12/1/2022 APL International Pvt Ltd 50.00 12/12/2022 50.00 General Foods and Ingredients Pvt.Ltd.

12/1/2022 APL International Pvt Ltd 80.00 12/15/2022 80.00 General Foods and Ingredients Pvt.Ltd.

 (Amount ` in lacs) 
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                                                           Details of funds received Details of Funds given

Date Name of funding party Amount Date Amount Entity to whom funds were given
mm/dd/yyyy mm/dd/yyyy

12/15/2022 Saharsh Business Pvt Ltd 20.00 12/15/2022 20.00 General Foods and Ingredients Pvt.Ltd.

12/8/2022 Saharsh Business Pvt Ltd 65.00 12/8/2022 65.00 General Foods and Ingredients Pvt.Ltd.

12/28/2022 Saharsh Business Pvt Ltd 90.00 12/28/2022 90.00 General Foods and Ingredients Pvt.Ltd.

12/31/2022 General Foods and Ingredients Pvt.Ltd. 30.00 12/31/2022 30.00 Amona Industries Ltd

12/31/2022 General Foods and Ingredients Pvt.Ltd. 70.00 12/31/2022 70.00 Param Food Industries Pvt Ltd

1/2/2023 Param Food Industries Pvt Ltd 30.00 1/3/2023 30.00 General Foods and Ingredients Pvt.Ltd.

1/2/2023 Param Food Industries Pvt Ltd 20.00 1/3/2023 20.00 General Foods and Ingredients Pvt.Ltd.

1/2/2023 Samtulya Infratech Pvt Ltd 41.00 1/2/2023 41.00 Samradhi Real Estate Pvt Ltd

1/5/2023 Saharsh Business Pvt Ltd 15.00 1/5/2023 15.00 General Foods and Ingredients Pvt.Ltd.

1/17/2023 Param Food Industries Pvt Ltd 20.00 1/17/2023 20.00 General Foods and Ingredients Pvt.Ltd.

1/17/2023 Amona Industries Ltd 30.00 1/17/2023 30.00 General Foods and Ingredients Pvt.Ltd.

1/25/2023 General Foods and Ingredients Pvt.Ltd. 50.00 1/25/2023 50.00 Saharsh Business Pvt Ltd

1/31/2023 Saharsh Business Pvt Ltd 75.00 1/31/2023 75.00 APL International Pvt ltd 

1/31/2023 APL International Pvt ltd 125.00 1/31/2023 125.00 Saharsh Business Pvt Ltd

2/13/2023 Saharsh Business Pvt Ltd 1.00 2/20/2023 1.00 Keval (India) Ltd

2/17/2023 Keval (India) Ltd 5.00 2/17/2023 5.00 Mahakosh Papers Pvt Ltd

2/17/2023 Keval (India) Ltd 4.50 2/17/2023 4.50 Mahakosh Papers Pvt Ltd

2/21/2023 Saharsh Business Pvt Ltd 235.00 2/21/2023 235.00 General Foods and Ingredients Pvt.Ltd.

2/23/2023 Keval (India) Ltd 22.35 2/23/2023 22.35 Promise Securities Pvt Ltd

2/27/2023 General Foods and Ingredients Pvt.Ltd. 235.00 2/27/2023 235.00 Saharsh Business Pvt Ltd

3/1/2023 Shri Siddharth Koolwal 24.50 3/1/2023 24.50 Saharsh Business Pvt Ltd

3/2/2023 Saharsh Business Pvt Ltd 50.00 3/2/2023 50.00 BFCL Terminal Pvt Ltd

3/3/2023 Saharsh Business Pvt Ltd 7.00 3/9/2023 7.00 APL International Pvt ltd 

3/13/2023 Saharsh Business Pvt Ltd 3.00 3/13/2023 3.00 Teej Impex Pvt Ltd

3/13/2023 Vishal Warehousing Pvt Ltd 5.32 3/13/2023 5.32 Anand Mangal Investment and
Finance Pvt Ltd

3/13/2023 Vishal Warehousing Pvt Ltd 15.00 3/13/2023 15.00 Anand Mangal Investment and 
Finance Pvt Ltd

3/13/2023 Anand Mangal Investment and Finance Pvt Ltd 45.00 3/13/2023 45.00 Teej Impex Pvt Ltd

3/14/2023 Anand Mangal Investment and Finance Pvt Ltd 45.00 3/14/2023 45.00 Teej Impex Pvt Ltd

3/14/2023 Anand Mangal Investment and Finance Pvt Ltd 45.00 3/14/2023 45.00 Promise Securities Pvt Ltd

3/15/2023 Saharsh Business Pvt Ltd 10.00 3/15/2023 10.00 BFCL Terminal Pvt Ltd

3/15/2023 Anand Mangal Investment and Finance Pvt Ltd 37.75 3/15/2023 37.75 Promise Securities Pvt Ltd

3/20/2023 APL International Pvt ltd 67.00 3/20/2023 67.00 BFCL Terminal Pvt Ltd

3/20/2023 Shri Nitesh Shahra 30.00 3/20/2023 30.00 BFCL Terminal Pvt Ltd

3/27/2023 Saharsh Business Pvt Ltd 275.00 3/27/2023 275.00 Bharat Foods Co. Op Ltd

3/28/2023 Saharsh Business Pvt Ltd 120.00 3/28/2023 120.00 BFCL Terminal Pvt Ltd

3/31/2023 General Foods and Ingredients Pvt.Ltd. 100.00 3/31/2023 100.00 BFCL Terminal Pvt Ltd

3/31/2023 Saharsh Business Pvt Ltd 50.00 3/31/2023 50.00 Kaytha Enterprises Pvt Ltd

12/26/2022 Neha Securities Pvt Ltd 41.70 12/26/2022 41.70 Samradhi Real Estate Pvt Ltd

12/27/2022 Neha Securities Pvt Ltd 45.00 12/27/2022 45.00 Samradhi Real Estate Pvt Ltd

12/28/2022 Neha Securities Pvt Ltd 45.00 12/28/2022 45.00 Samradhi Real Estate Pvt Ltd

3/14/2023 APL International Pvt ltd 20.00 3/14/2023 20.00 Saharsh Business Pvt Ltd

3/14/2023 Anand Mangal Investment and Finance Pvt Ltd 12.85 3/14/2023 12.85 Teej Impex Pvt Ltd

3/15/2023 Samradhi Real Estate Pvt Ltd 2.61 3/15/2023 2.61 Anand Mangal Investment and 
Finance Pvt Ltd

 (Amount ` in lacs) 
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iv.  The Company has undertaken following transactions wherein the funds were given on loan to other persons. However, there was no 
understanding with the borrower to lend or invest in other person or entity or to provide any guarantee,

security or the like-

Details of funds given

Date Entity to whom funds were given Amount
mm/dd/yyyy

4/4/2022 Rashika Agri Tech Indore 2.00

4/13/2022 Keval (India) Ltd 0.50

6/9/2022 Keval (India) Ltd 1.00

8/8/2022 Keval (India) Ltd 1.00

8/25/2022 Neha Securities Pvt Ltd 0.18

9/1/2022 Neha Securities Pvt Ltd 0.05

9/21/2022 Keval (India) Ltd 1.00

10/29/2022 Neha Securities Pvt Ltd 0.50

11/9/2022 Mahadev Shahra & Sons 0.10

11/14/2022 General Foods and Ingredients Pvt Ltd 1.00

12/15/2022 Mahadev Shahra & Sons 2.00

1/23/2023 Samradhi Real Estate Pvt Ltd 2.00

2/17/2023 Samradhi Real Estate Pvt Ltd 0.50

2/20/2023 Keval (India) Ltd 1.00

3/9/2023 APL International Pvt Ltd 7.00

Note 10. Other Financial Assets  (Amount ` in lacs)
st st  Particulars  As at 31   As at 31   

March, 2023 March, 2022

( i) Security deposits 
Unsecured- Considered good  0.32  1.10 
(ii) Bank deposits with less than 12 month maturity  111.19  -   

                                                                                                    Total  111.51  1.10 

Note 11. Current Tax Assets (Net) (Amount ` in lacs)
st st  Particulars  As at 31   As at 31   

March, 2023 March, 2022

Income Tax Refund (Previous Year's) 11.77 15.62 
TDS Receivable A.Y.2023-24                                                                                  15.52 
Less: Provision for Income Tax                                                                                 2.20 13.32 0.32 

                                                                                                    Total 25.09 15.94 

Note 12. Other Current Assets (Amount ` in lacs) 
st st  Particulars  As at 31   As at 31   

March, 2023 March, 2022

FDR  -    104.05 
GST recoverable  26.05 33.76 
Prepaid expenses  0.60  0.90 

Other  Deposits  6.12  8.12

                                                                                                    Total  32.77  146.83 

Note 13. Equity Share Capital  (Amount ` in lacs) 
st st  Particulars  As at 31   As at 31   

March, 2023 March, 2022

(a) Authorised share capital
 4000000 Equity Shares of  Rs. 10/- each  400.00  400.00 
(Previous year 40,00,000 Equity Shares of R 10/-each)
 (b)  Issued and Subscribed :-  300.00  300.00 
3000000 equity shares of Rs.10/- each
(Previous year 30,00,000 Equity Shares)
 (c) Fully Paid up Capital :-   300.00  300.00 
3000000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each
(Previous year 30,00,000 Equity Shares)

                                                                                      Total Paid up Capital  300.00  300.00 

SARTHAK GLOBAL LIMITED
stNOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH, 2023

 (Amount ` in lacs) 



a)  The Details of Shareholders Holding More than 5% Shares :

  Particulars  As at 31  March, 2023 As at 31  March, 2022 

No.of shares %Held No.of shares %Held 

Deepti Housing Pvt. Ltd. 200000 6.67% 200000 6.67%
Gagandeep Exports Pvt. Ltd. 426700 14.22% 426700 14.22%
Mahakosh Papers Pvt. Ltd. 250000 8.33% 250000 8.33%

stb) Shares held by promoters at 31  March, 2023 :
 

Promoter name No. of Shares % of total shares % Change during the year

Mahi Properties Pvt. Ltd. 100000 3.33% -

Mani Real Estate Pvt. Ltd. 100000 3.33% -

Gagandeep Exports Pvt. Ltd. 426700 14.22% -

Great Eastern Infrastructure Corporation Pvt. Ltd. 100,000 3.33% -

Rehva Estate Pvt. Ltd. 100,000 3.33% -

Mid India Commodities Pvt. Ltd. 150,000 5.00% -

Jayati Finance & Investment Pvt. Ltd. 150,000 5.00% -

Renu Jhalani 40,000 1.33% -

Sarthak Industries Limited 108,800 3.63% -

Mahakosh Amusements Pvt. Ltd. 100,000 3.33% -

Deepti Properties Private Limited 100,000 3.33% -

Promise Securities Pvt. Ltd. 106,100 3.54% -

Deepti Housing Pvt. Ltd. 200,000 6.67% -

Mahakosh Papers Pvt. Ltd. 250,000 8.33% -

Mahakosh Real Estate Pvt. Ltd. 0 0.00%  - 

Bunkim Finance And Investments Pvt. Ltd. 150,000 5.00% -

stShares held by promoters at 31  March, 2022 :

Promoter name No. of Shares % of total shares % Change during the year

Mahi Properties Pvt. Ltd. 100000 3.33%  -   

Mani Real Estate Pvt. Ltd. 100000 3.33%  -   

Gagandeep Exports Pvt. Ltd. 426700 14.22%  -   

Great Eastern Infrastructure Corporation Pvt. Ltd. 100,000 3.33%  -   

Rehva Estate Pvt. Ltd. 100,000 3.33%  -   

MD India Commodities Pvt. Ltd. 150,000 5.00%  -   

Jayati Finance & Investment Pvt. Ltd. 150,000 5.00%  -   

Renu Jhalani 40,000 1.33%  -   

Sarthak Industries Limited 108,800 3.63%  -   

Mahakosh Amusements Pvt. Ltd. 100,000 3.33%  -   

Deepti Properties Private Limited 100,000 3.33%  -   

Promise Securities Pvt. Ltd. 106,100 3.54%  -   

Deepti Housing Pvt. Ltd. 200,000 6.67%  -   

Mahakosh Papers Pvt. Ltd. 250,000 8.33%  -   

Mahakosh Real Estate Pvt. Ltd. 0 0.00%  - 

Bunkim Finance And Investments Pvt. Ltd. 150,000 5.00%  -   

st st
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c)  Reconcilaition of number of share  
st stParticulars As at 31  March, 2023  As at 31  March, 2022 

No. of shares  Amount  No. of shares  Amount 

Opening balance 30,00,000  300.00  30,00,000  300.00 
Issued during the year -    -    -   

Closing balance 30,00,000  300.00  30,00,000  300.00 

 

 Terms/rights attached to equity shares : 

The  company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one 
vote per share. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the company after 
distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

 Capital Management 

Equity share capital and other equity are considered for the purpose of Company’s capital management. The Company’s objective for 
capital management is to maximise shareholder value, safeguard business continuity and support the growth of the Company. The 
Company determines the capital requirement based on annual operating plans and long-term and other strategic investment plans. The 
management and the Board of Directors monitor the return on capital as well as the level of dividends to shareholders. 

 Earnings Per Share  

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 
during the year adjusted for bonus element in equity share.

st st Earning per share  As at 31  As at 31
March, 2023  March, 2022 

 Calculation of Basic EPS: 
 Total Profit or Loss attributable to shareholders (In Lakhs)  5.63  (413.21)

 Net Profit/ (Loss) for calculation of basic EPS (In Lakhs)  5.63  (413.21)

 Weighted average number of equity shares (In Lakhs) 30  30.00 

 Basic EPS (In Rs.) 0.19  (13.77)

 Calculation of Diluted EPS: 
 Profit(loss) after tax  5.63  (413.21)

 Net Profit/ (Loss) for calculation of diluted EPS (In Lakhs)  5.63  (413.21)

 Weighted average number of equity shares  30.00  30.00 
 -   

 Diluted EPS (In Rs.) 0.19  (13.77)

Note 14. Other Equity 

Other equity consist of following: (Amount ` in lacs)

st stParticulars  As at 31  As at 31
March, 2023  March, 2022 

General Reserve
Opening Balance  37.00  37.00 
Closing balance  37.00  37.00 

Surplus(deficit) in the statement of Profit & Loss
Balance as per last financial  statement  (178.33)  234.88 
Profit/ (Loss) during the year  5.63  (413.21)
Net surplus in the statement of profit and loss (172.70)  (178.33)

                                                                                         Total  (135.70)  (141.33)

Amount Transfer to Other Equity  (135.70)  (141.33)

(Amount ` in lacs)
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SARTHAK INDUSTRIES LIMITED
stNOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH, 2023

Financial Liabilities

Note 15.  Borrowings - Non Current (Amount ` in lacs)

st st  Particulars As at 31  As at 31  
March, 2023  March, 2022 

(a)Loans from entities other than related party
unsecured 1,488.45  918.08 

Net Amount 1,488.45  918.08 

(Refer Note No. 2.5(e) for accounting policy, Note No. 2.3(b) and Note No 34 for other information)

Other Information
In case of all the unsecured loans, there is no fixed repayment schedule. There is no continuing default in repayment of any loan or interest 
thereon. 

Note 16. Deferred Tax Liabilities/ Assets (Amount ` in lacs)

st st  Particulars As at 31  As at 31  
March, 2023  March, 2022 

Deferred tax liabilities/assets (net) 
Deferred tax liability
Timing difference on account of 
Depreciation -    (0.14)
Others (0.96)  -   

Deferred tax asset  -   
Timing difference on account of
Depreciation 0.42  -   
Fair valuation of investments 5.60  -   

Net Deferred Tax 5.07  (0.14)

 (Refer Note No. 2.5 (o) for accounting policy) 

Note 17. Borrowings - Current (Amount ` in lacs)

st st  Particulars As at 31  As at 31  
March, 2023  March, 2022

Short term borrowings

(a) Loans repayable on demand

     (i) From banks

     Secured (Overdraft)  55.02 90.42

(b) Loans from related parties

       Unsecured  354.37  -   

The above amount includes:

Secured borrowings 55.02  90.42 

Unsecured borrowings 354.37  -   

                                                                                                 Total  409.38  90.42 

(Refer  Note No. 2.5 (e) for accounting policy, Note No. 2.3(b) and Note No. 33 for other information) 

Other Information                                                                                                                                                                                               

Secured Loans
Overdraft of Rs. 55.02 lacs  from Bandhan Bank Limited having interest rate of 8% is secured by lien on fixed deposit

Unsecured Loans
In case of all unsecured loans, there is no fixed repayment schedule. There is no continuing default in repayment of any loan or interest thereon.
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Note 18. Trade Payables
(Amount ` in lacs)

st st  Particulars As at 31 As at 31
March, 2023 March, 2022

(A) Total outstanding dues of creditors micro and small 
       enterprises; and -    -   

(B) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than 
       micro and small enterprises 206.21  1,518.43 

Total 206.21  1,518.43 

  Disclosures under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 

  a. The principal amount and the interest due thereon (to be shown separately) -    -   
remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year;  

  b. The amount of interest paid by the buyer under MSMED Act, 2006 along with  the amounts  -    -   
of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year; 

  c. The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which -    -   
has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest 
specified under the MSMED Act, 2006);  

  d. The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of accounting year; and  -    -   

  e. The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding year, until -    -   
such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the 
purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of MSMED Act 2006.

 Trade Payables ageing schedule as on 31.03.2023  (Amount ` in lacs)

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total 
3 years

(i) MSME  -    -    -    -    -   

(ii) Others  198.26  -    7.95  206.21 

Total  198.26  -    7.95  -    206.21 

 (Refer Note No. 2.5(e) for accounting policy, Note No. 2.2(b)  and Note No. 33 for other information) 

 Trade Payables ageing schedule as on 31.03.2022  (Amount ` in lacs)

Particulars                                           Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total 
3 years

i) MSME  -    -    -    -    -   

(ii) Others  -    1,518.43  -    1,518.43 

Total  -    1,518.43  -    -    1,518.43 

Note 19.  Other Financial Liabilities (Amount ` in lacs)

st st  Particulars As at 31 As at 31
March, 2023 March, 2022

Outstanding liability for payables 2.40  3.81 

                                                                                                                Total  2.40  3.81 

 (Refer Note No. 2.3(b), Note No. 2.5 (e) for accounting policy  and Note No. 33 for other information) 

Note 20.  Other Current Liabilities (Amount ` in lacs)

st st  Particulars As at 31 As at 31
March, 2023 March, 2022

T.D.S./T.C.S. payable 8.80  4.49 
Employees benefit related  0.97  -   

                                                                                                                Total 9.78 4.49

SARTHAK GLOBAL LIMITED
stNOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH, 2023



Note 21.  Revenue from Operations  (Amount ` in lacs)

  Particulars  For the Year ended   For the Year ended 
st ston 31  March, 2023 on 31  March, 2022 

(a) Stock-in-Trade
Commodities  246.36  445.39 
Total (a)  246.36  445.39 

(b) Services
Professional Services  44.97 35.54 
Total (b) 44.97 35.54 

                                                                                           Total (a+b)  291.33  480.93 

(Refer Note No. 2.5 (h) for accounting policy on revenue and Note No. 2.3 ( c) for other information)

The invoicing schedules agreed with customers include periodic performance based payments and milestone based progress 
payments. Invoices are payable within contractually agreed credit period.

Note. 22  Other Income (Amount ̀  in lacs)

Particulars  For the Year ended   For the Year ended 
st ston 31  March, 2023 on 31  March, 2022 

Interest income 110.61 73.96 
Dividend income  0.03 0.07 
Other non operating income (net of expenses directly  2.00  -   
attributable to such income)
                                                                                                      Total  112.65  74.03 

(Amount ` in lacs)

a. Interest income comprises of For the Year ended   For the Year ended 
st ston 31  March, 2023 on 31  March, 2022 

(i) Interest income on financial assets that are measured at Amortised cost 109.93  73.96 
(ii) Other interest  0.69  -   

                                                                                                      Total  110.61  73.96 

Note 23.  Purchase of Stock in Trade (Traded goods) (Amount ` in lacs)

Particulars For the Year ended   For the Year ended 
st st

on 31  March, 2023 on 31  March, 2022 

Stock-in-Trade
Shares -    -   
Commodities  220.38  318.62 

                                                                                                      Total  220.38  318.62 

Note 24.  Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock in trade & work in progress (Amount ` in lacs)

Particulars For the Year ended   For the Year ended 
st ston 31  March, 2023 on 31  March, 2022 

Inventories (at close)
Stock-in-Trade  31.79  28.10 
Inventories( at commencement)
Stock-in-Trade  28.10  28.10 
Stock-in-Trade  - 102.37 

                                                                        Net Increase/(Decrease)  (3.69)  102.37 

Note 25.  Employee Benefit Expenses (Amount ` in lacs)

Particulars For the Year ended   For the Year ended 
st st

on 31  March, 2023 on 31  March, 2022  

Salaries
Salaries  28.21  24.74 
Salaries (Director)  5.16  5.75 
Securtiy Services  -    1.56 
Bonus  0.97 1.19 
Staff Welfare Expenses
Staff Welfare  0.44  0.27 

                                                                                                      Total  34.78  33.51 
 (Refer Note No. 2.5 (l) for accounting policy on employee benefits and 2.3 (d) for other information) 
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Note 26.  Finance Cost (Amount ` in lacs)

Particulars For the Year ended   For the Year ended 
st ston 31  March, 2023 on 31  March, 2022 

Interest to Others  89.96  58.71 
Bank Charges  0.04  0.04 

                                                                                                      Total  90.00  58.75 

Finance cost comprises of 
a. Interest expenses on financial liabilities that are measured at  89.96  58.71 
amortised cost
b. Other finance costs  0.04  0.04 

                                                                                                      Total  90.00  58.75 

Note 27.  Other Expense (Amount ` in lacs)

Particulars For the Year ended   For the Year ended 
st ston 31  March, 2023 on 31  March, 2022 

(a)Trading and distribution  expenses
      Packing & Forwarding Expenses -    0.43 
      Purchase & Quality Control Expenses  -    10.88 
      Commission  0.06  0.84 
      Loss Allowances  3.93  -   
      Loss Allowances on Commodity Business    5.62 
      Claim and Settlement  22.50 0

(b) Administration / Establishment expenses
      Discount and Other Deductions  -    0.76 
      Advance License Fees  3.00  3.00 
      GST Paid / Service tax / Excise Expenses/ TDS Expenses  0.83  0.02 
      Insurance Expenses  0.14  0.12 
      Internet Expenses  1.23  1.05 
      Legal & Professional Charges  9.88  9.60 
      Miscellaneous Expenses  0.80  408.68 
      Newspaper  & Periodicals  0.76  0.69 
      Postage & Courier  0.13  0.01 
      Repairs (Others )  1.31  1.89 
      Rent, Rates & Taxes  2.05 
      Security Services  1.56  -   
      Stationary & Printing  0.62  0.53 
      Technical Services  0.57 
      Telephone & Communication Expenses  0.55  0.51 
      Travelling by Directors  0.24  -   
      Travelling by Others  2.35  1.87 
      Loss on Fair Value of Invetments of equity and mutual fund  3.81  -   
      Water & Light Charges  1.39  1.20 
      Administration Expenses  -    0.01 
      Wastage Expenses  -    0.02 

(c) Auditors remuneration  0.50  0.50 

                                                                                                             Total  55.60  450.86 

Note 28.  Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (to the extent not provided for) (Amount ` in lacs)

Particulars For the Year ended   For the Year ended 
st ston 31  March, 2023 on 31  March, 2022 

(i) Contingent liabilities
(a) claims against the company not acknowledged as debt  -    -   
(b) guarantees excluding financial guarantees  -    -   
(c) other money for which the company is contingently liable  -    -   

 -    -   

Note 29.  Income Taxes (Amount ` in lacs)

st st
Particulars on 31  March, 2023 on 31  March, 2022 

a. The income tax expense consists of the following

Current Tax
Current tax expense for current year  -2.20  -   
Current tax expense/ (benefit) pertaining to prior years  -    -   

Total current tax expenses  -2.20  -   

Deferred Tax
Deferred tax expense for current year  5.21  -0.06 
Deferred tax benefit pertaining to prior years

Total income tax expense recognised in current year  3.01  -0.06 

(Refer Note No. 2.5 (m) for accounting policy on Income Taxes)
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b. The reconciliation of estimated income tax expense at Indian statutory income tax rate to income tax expense reported in statement of profit 
and loss is as follows:

Particulars For the Year ended   For the Year ended 
st st

on 31  March, 2023 on 31  March, 2022  

Profit before tax  2.62  -413.27 
Indian statutory income tax rate 26.00% 26.00%
Expected income tax expense 0.68  -   
Others (net)  1.52  -   

Total income tax expense  2.20  -   

stThe Company has estimated that the Indian statutory income tax rate applicable to the Company would be 26%  for the year ended 31 March 2023.

c. Reconciliation between the average effective tax rate and the applicable tax rate

Particulars For the year 22-23 For the year 21-22
Tax Rate % Tax Rate %

Statutory Income tax rate 26.00% 26.00% 
Difference due to tax of previous year  -    -   
other reasons 57.96%  -   
Average effective tax rate 83.96%  -   
As company incurred loss in preceeding financial year, reconciliation for that year is not possible.

30.  Related Party Disclosures
(i) List of related parties where control exists and related parties with whom transaction have taken place and relationship :-

Name of the Related Parties 

Relation Name  

Key Management Personnel Shri Sunil Gangrade Whole-time Director
Shri Pinkesh Gupta Chief Financial Officer
Shri Ankit Joshi Company Secretary

Directors (Not being Key Managerial Personnel) Mrs. Swati Sudesh Oturkar Non-Executive Director
Shri Yogender Mohan Sharma Independent Director
Shri Ritesh Sinvhal Independent Director

Other related parties Nirbhay Multitrade Private Limited 
Vishal Resorts & Hotels Private Limited 

 ii) Transactions with related parties are as follows (Amount ` in lacs)

  Name of Party Transaction Yead ended Transaction Year ended
Amount for the balances Amount for the balances

year ended as on year ended as on
31-03-2023 31-03-2023 31-03-2022 31-03-2022

Key Managerial Person  - Remuneration

Mr. Ankit Joshi  1.20  -    0.88  -   
Mr. Pinkesh Gupta  3.26  -    2.81  0.28 
Mr. Sunil Gangrade  5.16  -    5.51  -   

Directors (Not being Key Managerial Person)  - 
Remuneration

Mr. Swati Sudesh Oturkar  -    -    0.08  -   
Shri Yogendra Mohan Sharma 0.08
Shri Ritesh Sinvhal 0.08
Trade Receivables
 Other Related Parties 

 Nirbhay Multitirade Private Limited  -    3.93  -    3.93 
 Vishal Resorts & Hotels Private Limited  -    0.06  -    0.06 

Loss allowances
 Other Related Parties 

 Nirbhay Multitirade Private Limited  -   3.93  -   

31. Research & Development

The company conducts its R&D initiatives within the broad framework of innovation initiatives.

(Amount ` in lacs)
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32.  Additional Regulatory Information-

(I) Immovable Properties (other than properties where the company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the 
lessee) whose title deeds are not held in the name of the company and where such immovable property is jointly held with others, details are 
given to the extent of company's share. - The Company has no such immovable properties

(ii) The company has not revalued its property, plant and equipments.

(iii) The loans or advances in the nature of loans granted to promoters, directors, KMP's and the related

parties (as defined under Companies Act, 2013) are Nil (Previous year Nil)

(iv) There is no Capital Work in progress.

(v) There is no Intangible assets under development.

(vi) No proceedings have been initiated or pending against the company, under Prohibition of Banami Property Transaction Act.

(vii) The company has borrowings from the bank or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets being fixed deposits against 
overdraft facility. The Company has not and is not required to furnish quarterly statements or statement of current assets with banks.

(viii) The company was not declared wilful defaulter by any  Bank/Financial Institution/other lender. 

(ix) Relationship with struck off Companies- Nil/None

(x) Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies- No Charge registration or satisfaction was pending on the date of 
balance-sheet except for  

Assets Note No. for Lender Note No. for 
asset pledged borrowing details

Fixed deposits with carying value 10 Bandhan Bank Limited with carrying 17
of Rs. 111.19 lakhs  value of Rs. 55.02 lakhs

(xi) Compliance with number of layers of companies- The Company has complied with laws in respect of number of layers of 
Companies.

(xii) Details of Crypto Currency or virtual currency- Nil
Details of items of exceptional and extraordinary nature- Nil

(xiii) The company has not surrendered or disclosed any amount as income during the year in the tax assessment under the Income Tax 
Act,1961. 

(xiv) Ratios

Ratio Numerator Denominator FY 22-23 FY 21-22 Deviation by Reasons
>25%

 Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 3.51 1.37 155.84% Payment of significant 
amount of creditors lead to
improvement in current ratio.

 Debt-Equity Ratio Total Debt Shareholders 11.55 6.36 81.73% Significant increase in
Equity borrowings lead to increase

in debt-equity ratio

 Debt Service Coverage Earnings available Debt service = 1.08 1.07 1.14%
 Ratio for debt service Interest & Lease 

Payments + 
Principal 
Repayments

 Return on Equity Ratio Net Profits after Average 0.03 -1.13 -103.08% The Company incurred
taxes – Preference Shareholder’s significant expenses under
Dividend Equity  the head 'other expenses' in

preceeding year which
resulted in losses before tax.
It also resulted in negative
ratio in preceeding year.
However, the company
earned profits in current year
and ratio inproved.

 Inventory Turnover ratio Cost of goods sold Average Inventory 0.00 0.00  -   
OR sales

 Trade Receivables Total Sales Avg. Accounts 1.15 0.44 162.09% The unrealisable trade 
 turnover ratio Receivable receivables were written off in

preceeding year. It resulted
in improved ratio in current
year.

 Trade payables turnover Net Credit Average Trade 0.26 0.36 -29.89% Sharp decline in purchases
 ratio Purchases Payables  has resulted in fall in this ratio
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 Net capital turnover ratio Net Sales Average Working 0.27 0.39 -31.21% Sharp decline in sales and
Capital improvement in working

capital ratio has resulted in
fall in this ratio

 Net profit ratio Net Profits Sales 0.02 -0.86 -102.25% The Company incurred
after taxes significant expenses under

the head 'other expenses’
in preceeding year which 
resulted in losses before tax.
It also resulted in negative
ratio in preceeding year.
However, the company
earned profits in current year
and ratio inproved

 Return on Capital Earnings before Capital Employed 0.04 -0.30 -114.79% The Company significant
  employed  interest and taxes expenses under the head

'other expenses’ in
preceeding year which
resulted in losses before tax.
It also resulted in negative
ratio in preceeding year.
However, the company 
earned profits in current year
and ratio inproved

 Return on investment Income from Investments 0.07 0.06 19.03%
 investments

Debt service coverage ratio - As loans taken are repayable on demand, principal amounts repaid have not been included in denominator. Interest
amount paid is included in denominator.

SARTHAK GLOBAL LIMITED
stNOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH, 2023



Annual Report 2022-23

Page 72

SARTHAK GLOBAL LIMITED

SARTHAK GLOBAL LIMITED
stNOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH, 2023

33. Financial Instruments 
33 a. Financial instruments by category
The carrying value of financial instruments by categories as at March 31, 2023 are as follows:

         (Amount ` in lacs)

Particulars Note No. Fair value
through  through other instruments instruments cost carrying

profit or loss comprehensive in hedging not in hedging value
income relationship relationship

Financial Assets

Investments 4  20.28  -    20.28 

Loans 5  -    50.68  50.68 

Trade Recievables 7  206.69  206.69 

Cash and cash equivalents 8  33.91  33.91 

Loan 9  1,759.82  1,759.82 

Other Financial Assets (Current) 10  111.51  111.51 

Other Financial Assets ( Non Current ) - 0.00  -    -   

                                                                           Total  20.28   -    -    -    2,162.60  2,182.88

Financial Liabilites

Borrowings ( Non Current ) 15  1,488.45  1,488.45 

Borrowings (Current) 17  409.38  409.38 

Trade Payables 18  206.21  206.21 

Other Financial Liabilites (Current) 19  -    2.40  2.40 

                                                                            Total  -    -    -    -    2106.44  2106.44

The carrying value of financial instruments by categories as at March 31, 2022 is as follows:

                  (Amount ` in lacs)

Particulars Note No. Fair value Fair value Derivative Derivative Amortised Total
through  through other instruments instruments cost carrying

profit or loss comprehensive "in hedging not in hedging value
income relationship relationship

Financial Assets

Investments 4 24.10 0.00 24.10

Loans 5 446.70 446.70

Trade Recievables 7  300.04  300.04 

Cash and cash equivalents 8  22.55  22.55 

Loans 9  1,702.19  1,702.19 

Other Financial Assets 10  -    1.10  1.10 

                                                                             Total  24.10  -    -    -    2,472.59  2,496.68 

Financial Liabilites

Borrowings ( Non Current ) 15  918.08  918.08 

Borrowings ( Current ) 17  90.42  90.42 

Trade Payables 18  1,518.43  1,518.43 

other Financial Liabilites 19  -    3.81  3.81 

                                                                               Total  -    -    -    -    2,530.74  2,530.74 

Carrying amounts of Investments, loans, trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, bank balances and other financial assets and 
trade payables as at March 31, 2023 and 2022, approximate the fair value. 

Difference between carrying amount and fair value of Loans, Other financial assets, borrowings and other financial liabilites 
subsequently measured at amortised cost is not significant.

Fair value Derivative Derivative Amortised Total
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33 b. Financial Assets Pledged

Particulars Note No. 3/31/2023 3/31/2022

Carrying amount of Financial assets pledged as collateral for liabilites 10 111.19 0.00
Carrying amount of Financial assets pledged as collateral for liabilites 12 0.00 104.05
Carrying amount of Financial assets pledged as collateral for contingent liabilites - 0.00 0.00

111.19 104.05

Terms and conditions relating to pledge :-
Other Financial Assets: Fixed deposits with Bandhan Bank Limited assets have been kept on pledged to secure overdraft facility

33 c. Financial Risk Management

The Company is exposed primarily to market risks being credit and liquidity risks, which may adversely impact the fair value of its financial 
instruments.  The Company has a risk management policy which covers risks associated with financial assets and liabilites. The focus is 
to assess the unpredictability of the financial environment and to mitigate the potential adverse effects  on the financial performance of 
the Company.

33(d)(i) Management Of Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to perform or pay the amount according to the 
contractual terms or obligations causing financial loss to the Company Credit risk encompasses of risk of default, risk of deterioration of 
creditworthiness as well as concentration of risks. credit risk is controlled by analysing credit limits and creditworthiness of customers of a 
continuous basis to whom the credit has been granted 

Exposure to Credit Risk
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is Rs. 2148.97 Lacs  ( Rs. 24743.13 lacs in preceding year) being the total of carrying amount of 
Investments, loans, trade receivables, balance with banks, bank deposits and other financial assets.

Trade receivables
Concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivables are limited,  All trade receivables are reviewed and assessed for default on a 
quarterly basis.

Other financial assets
The Company maintains exposure in bank balances and term deposits with banks. Considering insignificant amounts and short term 
nature, there is no significant risks pertaining to these assets.

33(d)(ii) Management of Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk arises from the Company’s inability to meet its cash flow commitments on the due date. 

The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure that it will have sufficient funds to meet its liabilities when due without 
incurring unacceptable losses. 

The Company has obtained fund based overdraft facilities from bank. Furthermore, the Company have access to undrawn lines of 
borrowing/ facilities.

stThe Company has maintained a cautious liquidity strategy, with a positive cash balance throughout the year ended 31  March, 2022 and 
st31  March, 2023. Cash flow from operating activities provides the funds to service and finance the financial liabilities on a day-to-day 

basis.

The following table shows a maturity analysis of the anticipated cash flows including interest obligations for the Company’s non-
derivative financial liabilities on an undiscounted basis, which therefore differ from both carrying value and fair value.

(Amount ̀  in lacs)

 Maturity analysis for financial liabilities  for the year ended 31/03/2023

Particulars Note No. Carrying Contractual Less than Between one More than
Value  Cash Flows  one year  to five years  five years

(a) a maturity analysis for non-derivative financial liabilities 
Borrowings ( Non- Current Liabilities) 15 1488.45 -  1,488.45  -   
Borrowings ( Current Liabilities) 17 409.38 - 409.38  -    -   
Trade Payables 18 206.21 - 206.21  -    -   
Other Financial Liabilities 19 2.40 - 2.40  -    -   

                                                                                 Total 2106.44 0.00 617.99 1488.45 0.00

(Amount ` in lacs)
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                                     (Amount ̀  in lacs)

Maturity analysis for financial liabilities  for the year ended 31/03/2022

Particulars Note No. Carrying Contractual Less than Between one More than
Value  Cash Flows  one year  to five years  five years

(a) a maturity analysis for non-derivative financial liabilities 
Borrowings ( Non- Current Liabilities) 15 918.08 -  -    918.08 -
Borrowings ( Current Liabilities) 17 90.42 - 90.42  -    -   
Trade Payables 18 1,518.43 -  1,518.43  -    -   
Other Financial Liabilities 19 3.81 -  3.81  -    -   

                                                                               Total 2530.74 0.00 1612.66 918.08 0.00

33 e. Fair value measurement heirarchy

Fair value measurement heirarchy as at 31  March, 2023
The following table summarises financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value                                    (Amount ̀  in lacs)

Particulars Note No. Carrying                     Level of inputs used
Amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial Assets 
At Amortised Cost
Loans 5 50.68 50.68
Trade Receivables 7 206.69 206.69
Cash and Cash Equivalents 8 33.91 33.91
Loans 9 1759.82 1759.82
Other financial assets 10 111.51 111.51

At FVTPL
Investments 4 20.28 19.57 0.71 20.28

                                                                             Total 2182.88 19.57 0.71 2182.88

Financial Liabilities
At Amortised Cost
Borrowings ( Non- Current Liabilities) 15 1,488.45 1488.45
Borrowings ( Current Liabilities) 17 409.38 409.38
Trade Payables 18 206.21 206.21
Other Financial Liabilities 19 2.40 2.40

                                                                            Total 2106.44 2106.44
stFair value measurement heirarchy as at 31  March, 2022 is as follows.

The following table summarises financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value                                    (Amount ̀  in lacs)

Particulars Note No. Carrying                  Level of inputs used
Amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial Assets 
At Amortised Cost
Loans 5 50.68 50.68
Trade Receivables 7 300.04 300.04
Cash and Cash Equivalents 8 22.55 22.55
Loans 9 1702.19 1702.19
Other financial assets 10 1.10 1.10

At FVTPL
Investments 4 24.10 23.38 0.71 24.10

                                                                               Total 2100.65 23.38 0.71 2100.65

Financial Liabilities
At Amortised Cost
Borrowings ( Non- Current Liabilities) 15 918.08 918.08
Borrowings ( Current Liabilities) 17 90.42 90.42
Trade Payables 18 1518.43 1518.43
Other Financial Liabilities 19 3.81 3.81

                                                                              Total 2530.74 2530.74

st



Annual Report 2022-23

Page 75

SARTHAK GLOBAL LIMITED

SARTHAK GLOBAL LIMITED
stNOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH, 2023

34. Segment Information
                         (Amount ̀  in lacs)

Sr. Particulars Year Ended Year Ended 
No. 31.03.2023 31.03.2022

1. Segment Revenue (Net Sales/ Income)
a. Trading of Commodities 246.36 445.39
b. Share Transfer Agent 44.97 35.54
c. Un-allocable income -

Net Sales / Income From Operations 291.33 480.93

2. Segment Results 
(Profit (+)/ Loss (-) before Tax, Finance cost, unallocable 
income and unallocable expenditure)

a. Trading of Commodities 29.68 24.39
b. Share Transfer Agent 44.97 35.54
c. Un-allocable income 112.65 74.03

Less : -
i) Finance Cost 90.00 58.75471
ii) Other Un-allocable expenditure net off 94.68 488.48

Profit before Tax 2.62 -413.27
Less : -

i) Current tax -2.20
ii) Deferred tax credit / (charge) 5.21 0.06

Profit after Tax 5.63 -413.21

3. Segment Assets
a. Trading of Commodities 233.61 2663.46
b. Share Transfer Agent 4.83 0
c. Unallocated-Others 2042.08 30.58

Total 2280.52 2694.04

4. Segment Liabilities
a. Trading of Commodities 197.75 2535.37
b. Share Transfer Agent 0 0
c. Unallocated-Others 2082.77 158.67

Total 2280.52 2694.04

The accompaning rules are an integral part of there financial statement.

For and on Behalf of Board of Directors As per our report of even date attached
For Avinash Agrawal & Co 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN :022666C 

Ritesh Sinvhal Sunil Gangrade 
Director Whole - time Director 
DIN:07969340 DIN:00169221 

 (CA Avinash Agrawal) 
Pinkesh Gupta  Ankit Joshi  Proprietor 
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary  M.N.: 410875 

 UDIN: 23410875BGXUAX8709 
Place : Indore 
Date: 26/05/2023

Previous period/year figures have been regrouped/recasted wherever necessary.
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